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For an issue of 148,422,510 New Shares at an issue price of $0.05 per New Share to 

raise $7,421,125.50. 

 

Dated: 23 December 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

IMPORTANT: Not a prospectus 

This Offer Information Statement is not a prospectus under the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) and it has a lower level 

of disclosure requirements than a prospectus. Investors should obtain professional advice before accepting any 

Offer under this Offer Information Statement. 

You should read this document (including the Company’s Annual Financial Report for the financial year ending 30 

June 2021, a copy of which is attached as Annexure A) and any accompanying Application Form in their entirety. If 

you do not understand its content or are in doubt as to the course you should follow, you should consult your 

financial, legal or professional adviser without delay.  
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IMPORTANT INFORMATION 

This Replacement Offer Information Statement is 

dated 23 December 2021 and was lodged with 

ASIC on that date. Neither ASIC nor its their 

officers take any responsibility for the content of 

this Offer Information Statement or for the merits 

of the investment to which this Offer relates. 

The Replacement Offer Information Statement 

contains minor amendments to the original Offer 

Information Statement dated 16 December 2021. 

Any reference in the remainder of this document 

to “Offer Information Statement” is a reference to 

this Replacement Offer Information Statement. 

This Offer Information Statement has been 

prepared and issued by Smoke Alarms Holdings 

Limited (Company). It contains an offer by the 

Company to apply for New Shares in order for the 

Company to raise up to $7,421,125.50. 

No Shares will be issued on the basis of this Offer 

Information Statement after the expiry date of this 

Offer Information Statement, being the date 13 

months after the date of this Offer Information 

Statement.  

NOT A PROSPECTUS 

This Offer Information Statement is issued 

pursuant to section 709(4) of the Corporations 

Act. It is not a prospectus and it has a lower level 

of disclosure requirements than a prospectus. It 

does not contain all of the information that an 

investor would find in a prospectus or which may 

be required to make an informed investment 

decision regarding, or about the rights attaching 

to, the New Shares offered under this Offer 

Information Statement. 

EXPOSURE PERIOD 

Pursuant to the Corporations Act, this Offer 

Information Statement is subject to an exposure 

period of 7 days after the date of this Offer 

Information Statement (Exposure Period). The 

Exposure Period may be extended by ASIC by a 

further period of up to 7 days. The purpose of the 

Exposure Period is to enable the Offer Information 

Statement to be examined by market participants 

prior to the raising of funds. 

Applications received during the Exposure Period 

will not be processed until after the expiry of the 

Exposure Period. No preference will be conferred 

on any Applications received during the Exposure 

Period. 

DISCLAIMER 

This Offer Information Statement is of a general 

nature only and does not take into account the 

investment objectives, financial situation and 

particular needs of the investor. Before 

participating in the Offer, you should consider 

whether such an investment is appropriate to your 

particular investment needs, objectives and 

financial circumstances.  

You should conduct your own investigation, 

evaluation and analysis of the information 

contained in this Offer Information Statement. 

This Offer Information Statement is not intended 

to provide and should not be relied upon for 

accounting, legal or tax advice or investment 

recommendations. You should consult your tax, 

legal, accounting or other professional advisers 

before participating in the Offer. 

No person is authorised to give any information 

or make any representation in connection with the 

Offer which is not contained in this Offer 

Information Statement. Any information or 

representation not so contained or taken to be 

contained may not be relied on as having been 

authorised by the Company in connection with the 

Offer.  

Neither the Company nor any other party makes 

any representation or gives any guarantee or 

assurance: 

• as to the performance or success of the 

Company; 

• as to the rate of income or capital growth 

from the Company; or 

• that there will be no capital loss or particular 

taxation consequence of investing in the 

Company. 

An investment in the Company does not represent 

a deposit or any other type of liability of the above 

parties. An investment in the Company is subject 

to investment risk. These risks are discussed in 

section 7. 

Investors should note that past performance of 

the Company provides no guidance as its future 

performance. 
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The Underwriters do not take any responsibility 

for the information contained in this Offer 

Information Statement. 

RISKS 

Before participating in the Offer, Eligible 

Shareholders should be aware of the risks 

associated with an investment in the Company. 

Investors should carefully review the risks 

disclosed in section 7, as well as independently 

verify the material contained in this Offer 

Information Statement, and should rely on their 

own enquiries and seek professional advice in 

relation to a potential investment in the Company 

and as to the accuracy and completeness of this 

Offer Information Statement. 

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Offer Information Statement contains 

forward-looking statements concerning the 

Company’s business, operations, financial 

performance and condition as well as the 

Company’s plans, objectives and expectations for 

its business, operations, financial performance 

and condition. Any statements contained in this 

Offer Information Statement that are not of 

historical facts may be deemed to be forward 

looking statements. You can identify these 

statements by words such as ‘aim’, ‘anticipate’, 

‘assume’, ‘believe’, ‘could’, ‘expect’, ‘goal’, ‘intend’, 

‘may’, ‘objective’, ‘plan’, ‘predict’, ‘potential’, 

‘positioned’, ‘should’, ‘target’, will’, ‘would’ and 

other similar expressions that are predictions of or 

indicate future events and future trends. 

These forward-looking statements are based on 

current expectations, estimates, forecasts and 

projections about the Company’s business and 

the industry in which the Company operates. 

These forward-looking statements are not 

guarantees of future performance or development 

and involve known and unknown risks, 

uncertainties, and other factors that are in some 

cases beyond the Company’s control. As a result, 

any or all of the Company’s forward looking 

statements in this Offer Information Statement 

may turn out to be inaccurate. Factors that may 

cause such differences or make such statements 

inaccurate include, but are not limited to, the risks 

described in section 7. Potential investors and 

other readers are urged to consider these factors 

carefully in evaluating the forward looking 

statements and are cautioned not to place undue 

reliance on the forward-looking statements. 

These forward-looking statements speak only at 

the date of this Offer Information Statement.  

PRIVACY & ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING  

The Company may use information provided by 

investors to allow it to establish and verify your 

identity, process your application, service your 

needs as a security holder, provide facilities and 

services that you request and carry out 

appropriate administration of your investment. 

This means that the Company will need to collect 

your personal information (for example, your 

name, address and details of the securities in the 

Company that you hold) and also ultimate 

beneficial ownership information for anti-money 

laundering purposes. Under the Corporations Act, 

some of this information must be included in the 

Company’s registers, which will be accessible by 

the public. 

The Company will only use your information for 

the purposes for which it was collected, other 

related purposes and as permitted or required by 

law. If you do not wish to provide this information, 

the Company may not be able to process your 

application.  

The Company may share this information with 

government and law enforcement bodies if 

required by law and others who provide services 

to the Company or on the Company’s behalf, 

some of which may be located outside of 

Australia.  

DEFINITIONS 

Capitalised terms used to describe the Company 

and the Offer have the meaning attributed to 

them in section 9, “Glossary”. 

CURRENCY 

Unless otherwise noted, all currency amounts in 

this Offer Information Statement are in Australian 

dollars (AU$). 
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Key Dates 

Event Date 

ASIC Lodgement Date for original Offer 
Information Statement 

Thursday, 16 December 2021 

Record Date  Thursday, 16 December 2021 

Original Offer Information Statement made 
available to shareholders  

Friday, 17 December 2021 

Replacement Offer Information Statement 
lodged with ASIC 

Thursday, 23 December 2021 

First Day the Company can accept Applications 
and dispatch of Offer Information Statement 
with personalised Acceptance Form 

Friday, 24 December 2021** 

Closing Date Friday, 28 January 2022 

Issue Date Friday, 4 February 2022 

 
The above dates and times are indicative only and subject to change. The Company reserves the 
right to vary any of the above dates and times, including to close the Offer early or extend it subject 
to the Corporations Act and other applicable laws. In particular, the Company reserves the right to 
extend the closing date of the Offer, to accept late applications either generally or in particular 
cases or to withdraw the Offer without prior notice. 

** The Period from 16 December 2021 to 23 December 2021 is the “Exposure Period” with ASIC. 
The Company must not accept applications during the Exposure Period. ASIC retains the right to 
extend the Exposure Period from 7 to 14 days. If ASIC extends the Exposure Period, the First day 
the Company can accept Applications will be Friday, 31 December 2021. 

Key Offer Statistics 

Maximum gross proceeds of the Offer $7,421,125.50 

Issue Price per New Share $0.05 

Total number of New Shares available under 
the Offer 

148,422,510 

Total Shares on issue following the Offer 222,633,765 

Amount underwritten 100% 
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1. Chairman’s letter 

Dear Investors 

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present to you this Offer to subscribe for New Shares in 
Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited (“Company”). 

The Company is seeking to raise approximately $7,400,000 from the Offer before expenses. The 
Offer is being made by way of Entitlement Offer to Eligible Shareholders in conjunction with a 
Shortfall Offer to existing and potential new shareholders. The offer is also 100% underwritten by 
the Underwriters.  

The Offer gives the opportunity for investors to subscribe for two New Shares for every one Share 
they currently hold, and to subscribe for additional shares as part of the Company’s shortfall facility 
if they wish. 

The Company has experienced good performance in the six months to December 2021, and is in a 
good position to take advantage of the 2022 Queensland legislation that shareholders would be 
very aware of. To compliment the stronger financial performance, the purpose of this Entitlement 
Offer is to enable the Company to strengthen its balance sheet by reducing debt and creditors. For 
more information see section 5.2. 

The Offer is expected to close at 5:00pm (Sydney time) on 28 January 2022. To participate, you 

must ensure you have followed the instructions on your Application Form so that payment of 

your Application Monies is made on time. 

 

The Board urges you to read this Offer Information Statement carefully before making a decision 

to invest in the Company. In particular, you should read and consider the risk factors in section 7. 

You should consult your broker accountant, legal or other professional adviser for advice in 

relation to the Offer. If you have any questions in relation to the Offer, please contact the 

Company Secretary on 0474 745 665 or at Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au.   

 

As Chair, I commend this Offer to you and thank you for your continued support in the Company.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 
Matthew Driscoll 

Chair 

Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited  

mailto:Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au
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2. Frequently asked questions 

Question Answer More information 

Who is the Issuer? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(a) 

Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited (“Company” 

and “Issuer”) 

Section 3.1 

What is this 

document? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(g) 

This document is an Offer Information 

Statement. Offer Information Statements are 

regulated under the Corporations Act. This 

document is not a prospectus and it has a lower 

level of disclosure requirements than a 

prospectus.  

Important Notices 

What is the Offer? The Offer is a pro-rata Entitlement Offer to each 

Eligible Shareholder of 2 New Shares for every 1 

Share held at the Record Date. 

Eligible Shareholders, and New Investors, are 

also able to participate in the Shortfall Offer to 

subscribe for Shortfall Shares. 

The Offer is fully underwritten by the 

Underwriters.  

Section 3.2 

What are the terms 

of the Entitlement 

Offer? 

Each Eligible Shareholder is offered 2 New 

Shares for every 1 Share held at the record Date. 

Entitlements are non-renounceable.  

If you wish to subscribe for New Shares you 

must follow the instructions on your 

personalised Application Form so your 

Application Monies are received by the Share 

Registry by the Closing Date. 

Section 3 

What are the terms 

of the Shortfall 

Offer? 

Each Eligible Shareholder and New Investors are 

eligible to apply for Shortfall Shares under the 

Shortfall Offer. The New Shares that are not 

subscribed for under the Entitlement Offer 

become Shortfall Shares subject of the Shortfall 

Offer. 

The Board may allocate Shortfall Shares at its 

discretion but will not scale back an application 

for Shortfall Shares unless the number of 

Shortfall Shares applied for exceeds the number 

of Shortfall Shares available. This is in line with 

the Company’s shortfall dispersion strategy 

described in Section 5.4. 

Section 3.6 
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Question Answer More information 

Is the Offer 

underwritten? 

Yes, the Entitlement Offer is 100% underwritten. Sections 3.7 and 

8.5 

Who are the 

underwriters? 

The Underwriters are Fast Future and Synergy 4. 

Fast Future has agreed to underwrite 60% of the 

Offer and Synergy 4 has agreed to underwrite 

40% of the Offer. 

Sections 3.7 and 

8.5 

How can I review 

the financial 

performance of the 

Company? 

Corporations Act s 

715(i) 

The Company’s annual audited financial reports 

for the year ended 30 June 2021 is attached as 

Annexure A. 

Annexure A 

How will the 

proceeds be 

applied? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(c)  

The Company intends to apply the proceeds of 

the Offer to strengthen the balance sheet of the 

Company in the following way: 

• paying a debt to the Australian Tax 

Office (approximately $1.8 million (26% 

of net proceeds)) 

• Repaying a Westpac (approximately $1 

million (14.4% of net proceeds)) 

• Paying down the loan to Fast Future 

(approximately $3 million (43% of net 

proceeds)) 

• Making allowance for the potential 
acquisition of competitors and other 
operating businesses in the same or 
complementary industries in which the 
Company operates (approximately $1.2 
million (17.3%)) 

 

Sections 5.2 and 

5.3 

What is the 

Company’s 

business? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(b) 

The Company provides instillation, testing and 

monitoring services for smoke alarms in 

Queensland, Victoria and South Australia. The 

Company assists landlords and real estate 

agents in ensuring their obligations are met in 

respect of state and federal requirements for 

smoke alarms in residential premises. 

Section 6 

What are the rights 

of New Shares? 

All New Shares will be fully paid ordinary shares 

and will rank pari-passu with existing Shares. 

Section 6.1 
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Question Answer More information 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(a) 

What are the 

potential significant 

risks? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(d) and (h) 

An investment in the Company is subject to 

many significant risks, including: 

• change in regulation risk 

• technology risk 

• additional requirements for capital and 

access to capital 

• liquidity risk 

• financial performance 

A detailed description of risks is located at 

section 7. 

Investors should obtain professional investment 

advice before accepting the Offer. 

Section 7 

What are the 

expenses payable 

by the Company? 

Corporations Act s 

715(1)(e) 

The Company expects to incur the expenses  of 

approximately $486,027 in connection with the 

Offer including legal, underwriting, registry and 

ASIC fees. 

Section 8.1 

What are my 

options? 

If you are an Eligible Shareholder you may: 

• Elect to take up some of your Entitlement 

• Elect to take up all of your Entitlement 

• Elect to take up all of your Entitlement and 

apply for Shortfall Shares 

• Not participate in the Entitlement Offer 

Please note that if you do not participate in the 

Entitlement Offer, your percentage shareholding 

in the Company will be diluted.  

Section 4 

How can further 

information be 

obtained? 

If you require further advice as to whether to 

apply for New Shares under the Offer, you 

should seek professional advice. 

 

For general queries, please contact Stephen 

McAviney, Director, on 0474 745 665 or at 

Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au.   

Section 3.11 

 

mailto:Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au
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3. Details of the Offer 

3.1 Issuer 

The Company is the issuer of New Shares under the Offer. 

3.2 Description of the Offer 

The Company is seeking to raise $7,421,125.50 (before expenses of the Offer) by way of Entitlement 
Offer to Eligible Shareholders, as well as a Shortfall Offer.  

Eligible Shareholders as well as New Investors are entitled to subscribe for Shortfall Shares. 

The Entitlement Offer is fully underwritten by the Underwriters. See section 3.7 for underwriting 
information. 

3.3 Issue Price 

The Issue Price for the Entitlement Offer and any New Shares issued to the Underwriters is $0.05 
per Share. The Issue Price was determined by the board based on external advice to the Company 
and a recent share placement. 

3.4 Entitlement Offer 

Each Eligible Shareholder has the right to apply for 2 New Shares for every Share held at the Record 
Date. For example, if an Eligible Shareholder has 100,000 Shares at the Record Date, they will be 
able to apply for up to 200,000 New Shares. 

The Entitlements are non-renounceable, meaning that Eligible Shareholders will not be able to 
trade or transfer their Entitlement. Given the relative illiquidity and market for the Company’s 
Shares, the Board considers that there is no benefit in making the Offer renounceable.  

To apply for New Shares, Eligible Shareholders must complete and lodge the Application Form so 
that the Company receives it by the Closing Date.  

3.5 Eligible Shareholders 

Eligible Shareholders are Shareholders that:  

(a) are registered as a holder of Shares at the Record Date; 

(b) as at the Record Date, have a registered address in Australia; 

(c) are not in the United States and are not acting on the account or benefit of a person in the 
United States; 

(b) are eligible under all applicable securities laws to receive the Offer and subscribe for Shares. 

3.6 Shortfall Offer 

Any New Shares that are not subscribed for under the Entitlement Offer will form part of the 
Shortfall Offer and may be applied for by Eligible Shareholders and New Investors.  

Eligible Shareholders may apply for Shortfall Shares. The Eligible Shareholder’s Application Form 
will contain the total that an Eligible Shareholder must pay if the Eligible Shareholder wishes to 
accept all of their Entitlement. If an Eligible Shareholder wishes to subscribe for Shortfall Shares, 
the Shareholder can simply pay a greater sum of money using the details on the Application Form. 
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Any amounts received by Eligible Shareholders above their Entitlement are deemed to be 
applications for Shortfall Shares.   

New Investors may apply for Shortfall Shares by lodging an Application Form with the Company. 
All Shares applied for by New Investors will be deemed to be an application for Shortfall Shares. 

The Board may allocate Shortfall in accordance with the dispersion strategy described in section 
5.4. The Board will only exercise its discretion to scale back applications for Shortfall Shares if the 
total number of applications for Shortfall Shares exceed the number of Shortfall Shares available.  

3.7 Offer underwritten and effect on control 

100% of the Offer is underwritten by the Underwriters pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement. A 
summary of the key terms of the Underwriting Agreement is set out in Section 8.7.  

The Underwriters are Fast Future and Synergy 4. Fast Future holds a relevant interest of 4.40% of 
the Company’s Shares. Synergy 4 currently holds a relevant interest of 0.88% of the Company’s 
Shares.   

Fast Future is underwriting 60% of the Offer and Synergy 4 is underwriting 40% of the Offer. 

For illustrative purposes, the Underwriters’ current relevant interests may change under several 
scenarios, depending on the level of participation by Eligible Investors and New Investors in the 
Offer and Shortfall Offer. The scenarios below show the potential control effect on the Underwriters 
by underwriting the Offer (assuming associates accept their entitlements). 

Shares taken up by 
Eligible 

Shareholders  

% of New Shares 
issued to 

Underwriters 

Fast Future’s 
percentage Relevant 

Interest in the 
Company 

Synergy 4’s 
percentage 

Relevant Interest 
in the Company 

Offer fully 
subscribed by 

Eligible 
Shareholders 

0% (no shares issued to 
Underwriters) 

9,792,081 shares 

4.40% 

1,950,000 shares 

0.88% 

Offer 75% 
subscribed by 

Eligible 
Shareholders 

25% (37,105,628 shares 
issued to Underwriters) 

32,055,278 shares 

14.40% 

16,942,331 shares 

7.61% 

Offer 50% 
subscribed by 

Eligible 
Shareholders 

50% (74,211,255 shares 
issued to Underwriters) 

54,318,834 shares 

24.40% 

31,784,402 shares 

14.28% 

Offer 25% 
subscribed by 

Eligible 
Shareholders 

75% (111,316,883 
shares issued to 
Underwriters) 

76,582,211 shares 

34.40% 

46,626,553 shares 

20.94% 

Offer 0% subscribed 
by Eligible 

Shareholders 

100% (140,594,456 
shares issued to 

Underwriters (excluding 
those taken up by 
associates of the 

94,148,755 shares 

42.2% 

58,187,782 shares 

26.1% 
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underwriters under the 
Offer) 

 

Shareholders who do not participate in the Offer will have the holdings in the Company diluted. 
The following sets out the dilutionary effect, assuming all New Shares are issued under the Offer. 

Shareholding relevant interest 
before the Offer 

Entitlement and total price Relevant Interest 
following the Offer if the 
Offer is not taken up 

5% (3,710,563 Shares) 7,421,126 ($371,056.30) 1.67% 

1% (742,113 Shares) 1,484,226 ($74,211.30) 0.33% 

0.5% (371,056 Shares) 742,112 ($37,105.60) 0.17% 

0.1% (74,211 Shares) 148,422 ($7,421.10) 0.033% 

0.05% (37,106 Shares) 74,212 ($3,710.60) 0.017% 

 

Depending on the take-up of the Offer by Eligible Shareholders, the Underwriters may be required 
to acquire New Shares that would take their respective relevant interests in the Company above 
20%. The Company is relying on Exception 10 under section 611 of the Corporations Act to allow 
either or both Underwriters to acquire a Relevant Interest in the Company. Fast Future’s Relevant 
Interest in the Company will be a maximum of 42.2% following the Offer, and Synergy 4’s Relevant 
Interest in the Company will be a maximum of 26.1% following the Offer. This assumes the unlikely 
scenario where there is a 0% take-up of the Offer by Eligible Shareholders other than the associates 
of the Underwriters.    

See section 5.4 for a description of the Company’s shortfall dispersion strategy.  

3.8 Allotment 

The Company expects to allot New Shares successfully applied for under the Entitlement Offer and 
Shortfall Offer before 5:00PM AEDT on the Issue Date. Holding statements will be dispatched in 
accordance with the Corporations Act. It is the responsibility of each Applicant to confirm their 
holding before dealing in New Shares. 

3.9 Application Monies 

Until the time of allotment of New Shares, the Company will hold all Application Monies in relation 
to the New Shares in a purpose specific bank account. Any interest earned on Application Monies 
regardless of whether allotment takes place will remain the property of the Company. 

If you are an Eligible Shareholder, amounts received by the Company in excess of your Entitlement 
may be treated as an Application to apply for as many Shortfall Shares as your excess amount will 
pay in full for under the Shortfall Offer. 

3.10 Taxation 

Taxation consequences of investing in New Shares will depend on your particular circumstances. It 
is your responsibility to make your own enquiries concerning the tax consequences of an 
investment in the Company. If you are in doubt as to the consequence of an investment, you should 
consult with your taxation or other professional adviser before investing. 
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3.11 Enquiries 

If you require further advice as to whether to apply for New Shares under the Offer, you should 
seek professional advice. If you have any general questions regarding the offer, please contact 
Stephen McAviney, Director, on 0474 745 665 or at 
Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au.   

4. How to Apply 

4.1 Your Entitlement 

Your Entitlement will depend on the number of Shares you hold in the Company. As the 
Offer is a 2 for 1 offer, your Entitlement will be for 1 New Share for every Share you own.  
Before taking any action in relation to the Offer, you should read this Offer Information 
Statement in its entirety and seek any professional advice from your accountant or other 
professional advisor. 

You may, subject to any restrictions under any applicable laws: 

o take up all of your Entitlement; 

o take up part of your Entitlement; 

o take up all of your Entitlement and apply for additional New Shares under the 
Shortfall Offer; 

o do nothing, and your rights to acquire New Shares will lapse. 

4.2 What happens if I accept my full Entitlement? 

If you take up your full Entitlement under the Offer, you will receive a portion of New Shares 
that is equal to your percentage shareholding at the Record Date. This means your 
percentage shareholding will not be diluted as a result of the Offer. 

For example, if you hold 3% of the Company’s Shares at the Record Date, and you take up 
your full entitlement, you will end up holding 3% of the Company’s Shares, subject to any 
rounding and other like factors. 

4.3 What happens if I do not accept by full Entitlement? 

If you do not take up your full Entitlement, your proportional shareholding in the Company 
will be diluted. Any portion of your Entitlement that you do not take up will form part of 
the Shortfall Offer for other Eligible Shareholders and New Investors to take up. Any portion 
then not subscribed for under the Shortfall Offer will be taken up by the Underwriters in 
accordance with the terms of the Underwriting Agreement.  

For example, if you hold 3% of the Company’s Shares at the Record Date, and you do not 
take up any of your Entitlement, you will hold approximately 1% of the Company’s Shares 
following the completion of the Offer.  

4.4 How do I accept all, or part, of my Entitlement, and apply for Shortfall Shares? 

If you decide to take up all or part of your Entitlement, you must make a payment following 
the BPAY® instructions on the Application Form. You do not need to return a copy of the 
Application Form to the Company or to the Share Registry.   

mailto:Stephen.McAviney@smokelarmsolutions.com.au
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For payment via BPAY®, please follow the instructions on the Application Form. You can 
only make a payment via BPAY® if you are the holder of an account with an Australian 
financial institution that supports BPAY® transactions. 

It is your responsibility to ensure that your BPAY® payment is received by the Share 
Registry by 5:00pm AEDT on the Closing Date. You should be aware that your financial 
institution may implement earlier cut-off times with regards to electronic payment and you 
should therefore take this into consideration when making payment.  

Any Application Monies received by the Share Registry above your Entitlement will be 
considered as an application for Shortfall Shares. 

Any Application Monies received for more than your Entitlement where the amount 
outstanding is $2.00 or greater will be refunded as soon as practicable following the Closing 
Date. Refunds will be paid by direct credit where payment instructions are recorded on 
your shareholding or where no payment instructions are recorded then a cheque will be 
posted to the shareholder’s registered address. No interest will be paid on any Application 
Monies received or refunded. 

4.5 How Do I accept the Shortfall Offer? 

o Eligible Shareholders 

If you wish to participate in the Shortfall Offer as an Eligible Shareholder, simply 
pay an addition sum to the BPAY® address on your personalised Application Form 
equal to the amount of Shortfall Shares you wish to apply for.   

o Other Investors 

If you wish to participate in the Shortfall Offer otherwise than as an Eligible 
Shareholder, please contact the Company. The Company will provide you with a 
generic Application Form to fill out and return to the Company, along with payment 
instructions.  

o Unsuccessful applicants 

Your application for additional New Shares under the Shortfall Offer may not be 
successful (wholly or partially). The decision by the Directors in relation to the 
number of additional New Shares to be allocated to you under the Shortfall Offer 
will be final. If you are unsuccessful in the Shortfall Offer or your Application in 
respect of the Shortfall Offer is only part accepted, any excess Application Monies 
(above $2.00) will be refunded to you as soon as practicable following the Closing 
Date.  

Please note it is not practical to refund amounts of less than $2.00 and any refunds 
owing for up to this amount will be retained by the Company. 

4.6 Acceptance of applications under the Offer 

Paying the Application Monies (including any amount for Shortfall Shares) to the BPAY® 
account stated in your Application Form is an offer by you to the Company to subscribe 
for the number of New Shares calculated by dividing your Application Monies by the 
relevant Issue Price of the New Shares, at the relevant Issue Price on the terms and 
conditions set out in this Offer and the Application.  

An Application may be accepted in respect of the full amount applied for, or any amount 
less than that amount, without further notice. Acceptance of an application will give rise to 
a binding contract. 
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4.7 Amounts payable in respect of the Shares 

Except as set out in this Offer Information Statement, there are no other amounts payable 
by applicants in respect of the New Shares. No stamp duty, brokerage or commission is 
payable by applicants. 

 
5. Purpose and effect of the Offer 

5.1 Overview 

The Offer will raise $7,421,125.50 (before Offer costs and expenses) for the Company by 
the issue of 148,422,510 New Shares at an Offer Price of $0.05 per New Share. 

The Offer will provide the Company with net proceeds of approximately $6,935,098 after 
issue costs and expenses of approximately $486,027. 

5.2 Use of funds 

The proceeds raised from the Offer will be used to strengthen the balance sheet of the 
Company by: 

• Paying a debt to the Australian Tax Office of approximately $1.8 million 
(approximately 26% of net funds raised). 

• Repaying a Westpac facility of approximately $1 million (approximately 14.4% of 
net funds raised). 

• paying down debt to Fast Future. The outstanding balance of the Company’s loans 
to Fast Future is currently $8,034,414. The Company expects to attribute 
approximately $3.0 million for this purpose (approximately 43% of net funds 
raised) 

• Making allowance for the potential acquisition of competitors and other operating 
businesses in the same or complementary industries in which the Company 
operates. The Company expects to attribute approximately $1.2 million for this 
purpose (approximately 17.3% of  net funds raised) 

5.3 Impact on capital structure 

The tables below show the intended capital structure of the Company on completion of 
the Offer. 

 Number of Shares Percentage of post-Offer 
Shares 

Existing Shares 74,211,255 33.33% 

New Shares 148,422,510 66.67% 

Total immediately after 
Offer 

222,633,765 100% 
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5.4 Alternative fundraising strategies and dispersion strategy  

The Board has considered alternative strategies to raise capital in order to reduce the 
Company’s debt and creditors, and improve the position of the Company’s balance sheet, 
but does not consider that there is any realistic alternative to the Offer other than seeking 
to sell the assets and undertakings of the Company. The Board considers that such a sale 
would likely result in less or even no return to Shareholders. Likewise, a liquidation of the 
Company’s assets would likely result in less or no return to Shareholders. The Company is 
implementing the Offer to ensure that it is impossible for one shareholder to obtain a 
controlling interest of 50% or more in order to minimise the effect of the Offer on the 
control of the Company. 

o The company has canvassed eligible institutional investors, market leading broker 
entities and other intermediaries to invite them to participate in the Shortfall Offer 
directly or to assist with procuring New Investors.  

o The Board will accept all eligible applications for Shortfall Shares and will only scale 
back an application if the total number of applications for Shortfall Shares exceed 
the number of Shortfall Shares available. 

o The Board expects that the two largest shareholders will take up their entitlement 
(representing between them approximately 30% of the shareholding of the 
Company). The Company has nonetheless provided shareholders with the effects 
on the Company’s control, including the scenario where no shareholders accept 
their entitlement.  

o The associates of the Underwriters may apply for Shortfall Shares; however the 
Company will only accept applications for Shortfall Shares by an associate of an 
Underwriter to the extent that the Underwriter’s Relevant Interest in the Company 
does not exceed 19.99% as a result.  

o The Board will provide reasonable assistance to any Eligible Shareholder or Other 
Investor that wishes to apply to ASIC for a waiver from the takeovers provisions of 
the Corporations Act, if their participation in the Shortfall Offer will increase their 
percentage shareholding in the Company to above 20%. 

o The Board has engaged two Underwriters to lessen the control effect on any 
individual person or entity (and its associates). 
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5.5 Pro forma balance sheet 

Set out below is a pro forma balance sheet of the Company on successful completion of 
the Offer. It is based upon the Company’s unaudited balance sheet as at 31 October 2021. 
The Company has decided to use the unaudited October balance sheet for the basis of the 
pro-forma balance sheet instead of the 30 June 2021 balance sheet in the Financial Report 
due to provide a more updated view for Shareholders of the effect of the Offer on the 
balance sheet. 

The pro forma balance sheet reflects the impact of the Offer and all transaction costs as if they had 
occurred on 31 October 2021. It will not reflect the position of the Company on completion of the 
Offer. 
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6. Details of the Company and its business 

6.1 Rights attaching to Shares 

New Shares issued under the Offer will be fully paid and rank equally in all respects with 
existing Shares from their date of issue. 

The following information about the rights attaching to Shares is a summary of the rights 
set out in the Company’s Constitution. You can acquire a copy of the Company’s 
Constitution, free of charge, from the Company until the conclusion of the Offer. 

Each Share confers on its holder: 

o The right to vote at a general meeting of Shareholders (whether present in person 
or by any representative, proxy or attorney) on a show of hands (one vote per 
Shareholder) and on a poll (one vote per Share on which there is no money due 
and payable), subject to the rights and restrictions on voting which may attach to 
or be imposed on Shares (at the present there are none); 

o The right to receive dividends, according to the amount paid up on the Share; and 

o The right to receive, in kind, the whole or any part of the Company’s property in a 
winding up subject to the rights of a liquidator to distribute surplus assets of the 
Company with the consent of members by special resolution.  

Shares are fully transferrable. 

The rights attaching to Shares may be varied with the approval of Shareholders in general 
meeting by special resolution. 

6.2 Description of the Company’s business 

The Company operates smoke alarm installation, testing and monitoring in line with State 
and Federal smoke alarm legislation. The Company works primarily with landlords and real 
estate agents of residential properties to ensure they comply with their obligations. 

The Company’s business is primarily focussed in Queensland, with services also provided 
in Victoria and South Australia. 

New legislation in Queensland from 1 January 2022 requires the following measures to be 
in place for rental properties: 

• Smoke alarms must be installed in every bedroom of a home 

• All smoke alarms must be powered by either a 240 volt or 10 year lithium battery 

• All smoke alarms must be interconnected to each other 

• All smoke alarms must be photoelectric rather than ionisation 

• All smoke alarms must comply with AS3786:2014 

The Company has built its business to be in a strong position in the smoke alarm market 
to take advantage of the new requirements imposed by legislation.  
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6.3 Dividend Policy 

The Company does not intend on paying dividends for the foreseeable future. The Directors 
may reconsider the company’s dividend policy from time to time. 

6.4 Directors and Key Personnel 

A summary of the experience of each of the Directors is set out below. 

Cameron Davis, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

Qualifications – FAICD 

Cameron Davis has over thirty-seven years’ experience in the property industry since 
commencing work in a Sydney suburban real estate office in 1979. By 1985 Mr Davis had 
expanded into property development and hospitality through the acquisition of a number 
of regional hotels and caravan parks, eventually selling out of the group in 1990. He soon 
returned to the property sector through the purchase of the largest Body Corporate 
Manager in NSW, Alliance Strata Management (Alliance), with over 35,000 properties under 
management, 

Over the next 5 years, Mr Davis grew the business by more than 100% through the 
amalgamation of over 16 trade purchases of other Managers including the then ASX-listed 
Body Corporate Service (BCS) creating the largest management company in a Australia by 
a factor of 3. In 1996, following the purchase of BCS Mr Davis proceeded to list Alliance on 
the ASX and subsequently sold all of his interest in Body Corporate assets. 

In 1997 Mr Davis joined forces with the Ray White real estate group to develop Ray White 
Strata and built the company in the second largest management company in Australia with 
over 28,000 properties under body corporate management. After successfully listing the 
management company, Mr Davis sold his controlling interest to a Swiss based, family 
owned conglomerate in 2010. 

Over the past 5 years Mr Davis has rekindled his interest in property and service focus 
which has led him to participate in the opportunity within the Smoke Alarms Solutions 
business. 

Matthew Driscoll, Chair 

Qualifications – BA, Dip Ed, Gradd.Dip.App.Fin SF Fin, MSAA, GAICD 

Matthew has significant experience across several industries, including online technologies, 
financial services, fintech, cleantech, property and resources. He has more than 30 years’ 
experience in capital markets and the financial services industry and is an accomplished 
company director in roles across listed and private companies. He has significant 
experience in international business growth, mergers and acquisitions, equity and debt 
raisings and building strategic alliances, and remains committed to ethical, commercial and 
consumer-based outcomes. 

Stephen McAviney, Non-Executive Director and Company Secretary 

Qualifications – Bcom FIPA FFA FTIA FGIA FCG 

Stephen is an Accountant with over 40 years’ experience working on a wide range of entity’s 
specifically in the areas of Accounting, Corporate Governance, Finance, Management 
Consulting and Taxation. 



 

Page 21 
 

213248_4888635_1  

Stephen has been involved in the establishment of 2 practices and at present is a 
Consultant to MM & Co Advisory, a medium sized practice based in Sydney. 

Stephen has served as an officer of many varied entities over the last 40 years. 
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7. Risk factors 

The risks contained in this Section 7 should be considered carefully by investors. Investors 
should be aware that an investment in the Company involves risks, which may be higher 
than the risks associated with an investment in other companies. 

There are numerous widespread risks associated with investing in any form of business and 
with investing in companies in general. There is also a range of specific risks associated 
with the Company’s activities.  

These risk factors are largely beyond the control of the Company and its Directors because 
of the nature of the activities of the Company. 

Persons considering whether or not to invest in the Company should read the whole of this 
Offer Information Statement before any decision is made to apply for New Shares. 

Investors should consider whether the New Shares offered are a suitable investment for 
them having regard to their own personal investment objectives and financial 
circumstances, and the risk factors set out below. If in any doubt, investors should consult 
with their professional advisers before deciding whether to apply for New Shares. 

The following, which is not exhaustive, identifies some of the major risks associated with 
an investment in the Company, of which investors need to be aware before making a 
decision on whether or not to invest in the Company’s Shares. 

Investors should consider that an investment in the Company is speculative. 

The business, assets and operations of the Company are subject to certain risk factors that 
have the potential to influence the operational and financial performance of the Company 
in the future. These risks can impact on the value of an investment in the securities of the 
Company. 

The Board aims to manage these risks by carefully planning its activities and implementing 
risk control measures. Some of the risks are, however, highly unpredictable and the extent 
to which they can be effectively managed is limited. Set out below are some of the key risks 
which the Directors consider to be associated with an investment in the Company.  

7.1 Significant risks of investing in the Company 

Dilution of shareholding 

Shareholders who do not participate in the Offer will have the holdings in the Company diluted. 
Section 3.7 of this Offer Information Statement sets out the dilutionary effect, assuming all New 
Shares are issued under the Offer. If you do not participate in the Offer your voting power in the 
Company will be reduced to a third of what it previously was.  

Technology Risk 

The Company utilises various technologies, know-how and intellectual property to its competitive 

advantage. Should the Company’s current or future technologies fail to deliver desired outcomes, 

this could have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial performance and future 

prospects of its business. 

Change in Regulation Risk 
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The Company’s competitive advantage, both currently and into the future, are heavily dependent 

on government regulation in the smoke alarms space. Although anticipated that government 

regulation will change on the requirements for smoke alarms in such a way that will increase 

demand for the Company’s products, the Company has no control over this process. 

There is a risk that laws or regulations may be introduced or amended in Australia or the states in 

which the Company operates. Changes to the regulatory environment could have a material effect 

on the Company, and the value of the Shares. 

Additional Requirements for Capital and access to capital 

The Company in recent years has had to rely heavily on debt financing to keep operating its 

business. The Company has sought participation from substantial institutional investor groups in 

raising capital but has received negative responses. The Company will struggle to raise capital from 

outside of its current Shareholder base.  

Financial performance 

There is significant uncertainty surrounding the future financial performance of the Company. 

The Company has made losses in the previous financial years and there is no guarantee that 

operating profits will happen in the ensuing years.  

Competition 

The Company’s prospects in the industry in which it operates come from its ability to be an early 

mover to changes in government regulation. The Company does however have a number of  

established competitors. The ability to capitalise on growth opportunities in the sector is 

dependent on many factors and these competitors will place pressure on the Company and may 

impact on the ability of the Company to capitalise on new opportunities. This may adversely effect 

the company’s financial performance and business outlook.  

7.2 Key investment risks 

Investment in an unlisted company 

The Company is not listed on any stock exchange and the Shares are not quoted. As such, there 

will not be a ready market for the Shares and it may be difficult or even impossible to find a buyer 

if you wish to sell your Shares. 

Minority Holding by Shareholders Risk 

A material possibility on completion of the Offer is that the Underwriters will have a substantial 

interest of the Company. As a result, Shareholders will hold only a minority interest in the Company 

and will have only limited ability to affect the outcome of matters submitted to a vote of 

Shareholders. 

Accounting Standards 

Changes in accounting standards and subjective assumptions, estimates, and judgments by 

management related to complex accounting matters could significantly affect the Company’s 

financial results or financial position. 
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Liquidity Risk 

There is no active market for the Company’s Shares and as such it may be difficult to find a buyer 

if you wish to sell your shares. If you wish to sell your shares you may have to sell them at a 

significant discount in order to find a buyer. Investments in the Company should be considered 

as illiquid.  

Dividends 

There is no certainty that liquidity will be available to investors by way of dividends. Any such 

returns of capital or income are entirely at the discretion of the Board. 

Taxation Risk 

Changes to taxation legislation may also impact adversely upon Investors’ returns. Shareholders 

should obtain independent tax advice in respect of any investment in the Company 

Operational Risks 

The Company is exposed to a number of risks beyond its control, such as industrial actions and 

disputes or unusual or unexpected events such as fires or other accidents. There may be difficulties 

with obtaining government and/or third party approvals, unexpected shortages or increase in the 

price of consumables, plant and equipment. 

The Company’s operations may be adversely affected by higher than anticipated costs. No 

assurance can be given that the Company will achieve commercial viability through development 

of any of its technology, processes or intellectual property. 

Government Policy 

The Company may be affected by changes to government policies, legislation and taxation. 

Changes in Government policies, legislation and taxation can have a significant influence on a 

business’ prospects and return to investors. The Company’s products could be subject to 

government regulation, and the regulatory approval and maintenance process for such products 

may be expensive, time-consuming, and uncertain both in timing and in outcome. 

Insurance Risks 

The Company does, wherever practicable and economically advisable, utilise insurance to mitigate 

a number of business risks. Such insurance may not always be available or may fall outside the 

scope of insurances cover. In addition, there remains the risk that an insurer defaults in the payment 

of a legitimate claim by the Company. 

Litigation 

Litigation brought by third parties including but not limited to customers, partners, suppliers, 

business partners or employees could negatively impact the business in the case where the impact 

of such litigation is greater than or outside the scope of the Company’s insurance. 

Economic Risk 
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The performance of the Company is likely to be affected by changes in economic conditions. 

Profitability of the business may be affected by some of the matters listed below: 

1. Future demand for the Company’s products and services, particularly in light of a changing 

market based on government regulation. 

3. Deterioration in economic conditions, possibly leading to reductions in spending and other 

potential revenues which could be expected to have a corresponding adverse impact on 

the Company’s operating and financial performance. 

5. Financial failure or default by any entity with which the Company may become involved in 

a contractual relationship. 

7. Changes in investor sentiment towards particular market sectors. 

8. The demand for, and supply of, capital. 

9. Terrorism, corona-virus pandemic, or other hostilities. 

General investment risk 

The future performance of the Company may be adversely affected by a range of factors, including 

movements in inflation, interest rates, general economic conditions, changes in legislation and 

accounting standards, changes in government policy, changes in the supply and demand for the 

Company’s goods and services. Investors should be aware that there are risks associated with any 

investment and that the price of the Company’s Shares can move down as well as up.  

7.3 Forward Looking Statements 

This Offer Information Statement contains forward-looking statements concerning the Company’s 

business, operations, financial performance and condition as well as the Company’s plans, 

objectives and expectations for its business, operations, financial performance and condition. Any 

statements contained in this Offer Information Statement that are not of historical facts may be 

deemed to be forward looking statements. You can identify these statements by words such as 

‘aim’, ‘anticipate’, ‘assume’, ‘believe’, ‘could’, ‘expect’, ‘goal’, ‘intend’, ‘may’, ‘objective’, ‘plan’, 

‘predict’, ‘potential’, ‘positioned’, ‘should’, ‘target’, will’, ‘would’ and other similar expressions that 

are predictions of or indicate future events and future trends. 

These forward-looking statements are based on current expectations, estimates, forecasts and 

projections about the Company’s business and the industry in which the Company operates. These 

forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance or development and involve 

known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that are in some cases beyond the 

Company’s control. As a result, any or all of the Company’s forward looking statements in this Offer 

Information Statement may turn out to be inaccurate. Potential investors and other readers are 

urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the forward looking statements and are 

cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements. 

These forward-looking statements speak only at the date of this Offer Information Statement. 

Unless required by law, the Company does not intend to publicly update or revise any forward 

looking statements to reflect new information or future events or otherwise. 
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8. Additional information 

8.1 Expenses of the Offer 

Expenses connected with the Offer are being borne by the Company. The approximate expenses 

of the Offer include legal fees, underwriting fees, administration fees, printing fees and other 

general costs, and are set out in the following table (exclusive of GST). 

Type Amount 

Legal Expenses $20,000 

Underwriting fees Fast Future – $255,896.02 

Synergy 4 - $174,207.01 

Legal costs - $20,000 

Total - $450,103.03 

Administration Expenses $14,000 

ASIC lodgement fees $1,924 

Total $486,027.03 

 

8.2 Disclosure 

This Offer Information Statement is issued pursuant to section 709(4) of the Corporations Act. It is 

not a prospectus and it has a lower level of disclosure requirements than a prospectus. It does not 

contain all the information that an investor would find in a prospectus or which may be required 

to make an informed investment decision regarding, or about the rights attaching to, the New 

Shares offered under this Offer Information Statement.  

You should obtain professional investment advice before accepting the offer made under this Offer 

Information Statement. 

This information in this Offer Information Statement and the accompanying Application Form is 

not financial product advice and does not take into account your investment objectives, financial 

situation of particular needs. It is important that you read this Offer Information Statement in its 

entirety before deciding whether or not to apply for New Shares. In particular you should consider 

the risk factors that could affect the performance of the Company, some of which are outlined in 

section 7. You should carefully consider these factors in light of your personal circumstances 

(including financial and taxation issues) and seek professional guidance before deciding whether 

the apply for New shares. If you have any questions you should seek professional advice from your 

stockbroker, accountant or other professional advisor.  
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8.3 Disclaimer of representations 

No person is authorised to give any information, or to make any representation, in connection with 

the Offer that is not contained in this Offer Information Statement. 

Any information or representation that is not in this Offer Information Statement may not be relied 

on as having been authorised by the Company or any of its related bodies corporate in connection 

with the Offer. Except as required by law, and only to the extent so required, none of the Company 

or any other person, warrants or guarantees the future performance of the Company or any 

investment made pursuant to this Offer Information Statement. 

8.4 Withdrawal of Offer 

The Company reserves the right to withdraw all or part of the Offer and this Offer Information 
Statement at any time, subject to applicable laws. If the Company withdraws the Offer, the 
Company will refund Application Monies in relation to New Shares not already issued in 
accordance with the Corporations act without payment of interest. 

8.5 Underwriting Agreement 

The following is an outline of the key terms of the Underwriting Agreement. 

Term Detail 

Underwriters Fast Future Pty Ltd ACN 600 273 210 in its capacity as trustee of 
the Fast Future Trust 

Synergy 4 Pty Ltd ACN 161 620 560 

Amount Underwritten  100% of New Shares under this Offer 

Up to 60% underwritten by Fast Future 

Up to 40% underwritten by Synergy 4 

Underwriting Fee 6% of the Amount Underwritten per Underwriter net of the 
Underwriter’s entitlement under the Offer or their associates’ 
entitlements. Underwriting fees may be paid by cash or through 
the issue of Shares (subject to any shareholder approvals required 
by the Corporations Act). 

Company undertakings The Company must: 

• Notify the Underwriters of any breach of the Underwriting 
Agreement. 

• Provide the Underwriters copies of all ASIC 
communication. 

• Conduct the Company’s business in the ordinary course. 

• Not vary the Company’s constitution. 

• Obtain the Underwriter’s consent to changes to the 
timetable of the Offer 
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Termination The Underwriters may terminate the agreement if: 

• The Company does not provide notices in accordance 
with the Underwriting Agreement. 

• The Company is prevented from issuing the Shares to the 
Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement, the 
Corporations Act, any statute or regulation, by ASIC or 
any court or governmental or semi-governmental body. 

• The Company defaults under the Underwriting 
Agreement. 

• The Company becomes insolvent. 

• A judgment by a court is obtained against the Company. 

• The Company undertakes certain prohibited corporate 
actions. 

• The Company breaches the warranties given under the 
Underwriting Agreement. 

• The Company withdraws the Offer. 

• The OIS contains false, misleading or deceptive 
statements. 

• The Timetable is delayed more than 10 Business Days 
without the prior approval of the Underwriters. 

• A director of the company is charged with an indictable 
offence or becomes disqualified from managing a 
corporation. 

 

8.6 Consents 

Chapter 6D of the Corporations Act imposes a liability regime on the Company (as offeror of the 
New Shares), the Directors and persons named in the Offer Information Statement with their 
consent as having made a statement in the Offer Information Statement involved in a contravention 
in relation to the Offer Information Statement with regard to misleading and deceptive statements 
made in the Offer Information Statement. 

Although the Company bears primary responsibility for the Offer Information Statement, the other 
parties involved in the preparation of the Offer Information Statement can also be responsible for 
certain statements made in it.  

Each of the parties referred to in this Section 8.6 

o does not make, or purport to make, any statement in this Offer Information Statement 
other than those referred to in this Section; and 

o in light of the above, to the maximum extent permitted by law, expressly disclaim and take 
no responsibility for any part of this Offer Information Statement other than a reference to 
its name and a statement included in this Offer Information Statement with the consent of 
the party named in this Section8.6. 
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Fast Future has given its written consent to being named as an Underwriter pursuant to the 
Underwriting Agreement, and for the inclusion of all information about it in this Offer Information 
Statement, in the form and context in which the information is included. Fast Future has not 
withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Offer Information Statement with ASIC. 

Synergy 4 has given its written consent to being named as an Underwriter pursuant to the 
Underwriting Agreement, and for the inclusion of all information about it in this Offer Information 
Statement, in the form and context in which the information is included. Synergy 4 has not 
withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Offer Information Statement with ASIC. 

Hall Chadwick has given its written consent to being named as auditor to the Company in this Offer 
Information Statement and for the  inclusion of the  audited financial information of  the  Company 
in  Annexure A, in the form and context in which the information and the report are included. Hall 
Chadwick has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Offer Information Statement 
with ASIC. 

Cowell Clarke has given its written consent to being named as the solicitors to the Offer in this 
Offer Information Statement, in the form and context in which the information is included. Cowell 
Clarke has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Offer Information Statement 
with ASIC. 

Link Market Services has given its written consent to being named as the Share Registry in this 
Offer Information Statement, in the form and context in which the information is included. Link 
Market Services has not withdrawn its consent prior to the lodgement of this Offer Information 
Statement with ASIC. 

8.7 Governing law 

This Offer Information Statement, the Offer and the contracts formed on acceptance of the Offer 
pursuant to the Application Forms are governed by the laws applicable in Queensland, Australia. 
Each applicant for New Shares submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of 
Queensland, Australia. 

8.8 Overseas investors 

The Offer is an offer to Australian investors only. The Offer does not constitute an offer in any place 
which, or to any person whom, it would be unlawful to make such an offer. 

The Offer is not open to persons in the United States or persons with a registered address in the 
United States. 

The New Shares being offered pursuant to this Offer Information Statement have not been 
registered under the US Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent 
registration or an applicable exemption from registration under the US Securities Act and 
applicable state securities laws. This Offer Information Statement does not constitute an offer to 
sell, or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any state 
or other jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful. In addition, any 
hedging transaction involving these securities may not be conducted unless in compliance with 
the US Securities Act. 

8.9 Privacy 

By applying for New Shares, you are providing information to the Company (directly and/or via the 
Share Registry) that may constitute personal information for the purposes of the Privacy Act 1988 
(Cth). The Company (and the Share Registry on its behalf) collects, holds and uses personal 
information provided to it to assess your application and administer your holding of Shares. 
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If you do not provide the information requested, the Company and the Share Registry may not be 
able to process or accept the form. 

Access to your personal information may be provided to: 

o third parties who carry out functions on behalf of the Company, including marketing and 
administration functions, on a confidential basis; 

o third parties if that disclosure is required by law; and 

o related bodies corporate (as that term is defined in the Corporations Act) which carry out 
functions on behalf of the Company. 

You have a right to request access to the personal information that the Company holds about you 
subject to certain exemptions under law. A fee may be charged for access. Applicants may request 
access to personal information by telephoning or writing to the Company Secretary. 

8.10 Directors’ responsibility statement and consent 

This Offer Information Statement is issued by the Company and its issue has been authorised by a 
resolution of the Directors. In accordance with section 720 of the Corporations Act, each Director 
has consented to this Offer Information Statement being lodged with ASIC and has not withdrawn 
that consent. 

 

 
 

Matthew Driscoll 

Chair 

For and on behalf of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited  
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9. Glossary 

Applicants means a person who lodges an Application Form 

Application means an application for New Shares pursuant to this Offer Information Statement 

Application Form means the application form attached to this Offer Information Statement as 
Annexure B 

ASIC means the Australian Securities and Investments Commission 

Board means the board of directors of the Company 

Closing Date means the date the offer closes, described in the Key Dates section 

Company means Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited ACN 605 400 066 

Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth)  

Directors means the directors of the Company 

Eligible Shareholders means Shareholders that are eligible to participate in the Offer pursuant to 
section 3.5 

Entitlement means an Eligible Shareholders entitlement to subscribe for New Shares at the ratio 
of 2 New Shares for every 1 Share currently held 

Entitlement Offer and Offer means the offer of New Shares pursuant to this Offer Information 
Statement 

Exposure Period means the period of exposure required by the Corporations Act for ASIC and 
other parties to review the Offer Information Statement described in the Key Dates section 

Fast Future means Fast Future Pty Ltd ACN 600 273 210 in its capacity as trustee of the Fast Future 
Trust 

New Shares means the Shares to be issued under the Offer 

Offer Information Statement means this document 

Record Date means the date for determining the Company’s share register for the purpose of 
determining each Eligible Shareholder’s Entitlement, as described in the Key Dates section of this 
Offer Information Statement 

Relevant Interest has the same meaning as under the Corporations Act 

Shareholders means the shareholders of the Company 

Shares means fully paid ordinary shares in the Company 

Synergy 4 means Synergy 4 Pty Ltd 

Underwriters mean Fast Future and Synergy 4 

Underwriting Agreement means the agreement between the Company and the Underwriters, the 
key terms of which are described at section 8.5  
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10. Corporate Directory 

Issuer 

Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited 
39 Navigator Place 
Hendra Qld 4011 
Telephone: 1300 554 474 
Website: www.smokealarmsolutions.com.au  

Directors 

Cameron Davis 
Matthew Driscoll 
Stephen McAviney 

Company Secretary 

Stephen McAviney 

Share Registry 

Link Market Services Limited 

Level 12, 680 George St 
Sydney NSW 2000 
 
Solicitors to the Offer 

Cowell Clarke 
Level 9, 63 Pirie Street 
Adelaide SA 5000 

Auditor 

Hall Chadwick (053718175) 
Level 40, 2-26 Park Street 
Sydney NSW 200 

 

  

http://www.smokealarmsolutions.com.au/
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Our directors present their report on the consolidated entity (referred to herein as the Group) 

consisting of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the financial year ended 

30 June 2021, which is to be read in conjunction with the following information: 

General Information 

The company was incorporated under the Corporations Act 2001 as a public company limited by 

shares on 21 April 2015. 
 

Directors 

The following persons were directors of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited during or since the end 

of the financial year up to the date of this report unless specified otherwise: 

• Cameron Davis  

• Matthew Driscoll  

• Stephen McAviney 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless 

otherwise stated. 
 

Information Relating to Directors and Company Secretary 
 

Cameron Davis - Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer 

Qualifications - FAICD 

Experience - Mr Davis has over thirty-seven years’ experience in the 

property industry since commencing work in a Sydney 

suburban real estate office in 1979. By 1985 Mr Davis 

had expanded into property development and hospitality 

through the acquisition of a number of regional hotels 

and caravan parks, eventually selling out of the group in 

1990. He soon returned to the property sector through 

the purchase of the largest Body Corporate Manager in 

NSW, Alliance Strata Management (Alliance), with over 

35,000 properties under management. 

Over the next 5 years, Mr Davis grew the business by 

more than 100% through the amalgamation of over 16 

trade purchases of other Managers including the then 

ASX-listed Body Corporate Services (BCS) creating the 

largest Management company in Australia by a factor of 

3. In 1996, following the purchase of BCS Mr Davis 

proceeded to list Alliance on the ASX and subsequently 

sold all of his interests in Body Corporate assets. 

In 1997, Mr Davis joined forces with the Ray White real 

estate group to develop Ray White Strata and built the 

company into the second largest Management Company 

in Australia with over 28,000 properties under Body 

Corporate Management. After successfully listing the 

Management Company, Mr Davis sold his controlling 

interest to a Swiss based, family owned conglomerate 

in 2010. Over the past 5 years Mr Davis 
has rekindled his interest in property and service focus 
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which has led him to participate in the opportunity 

within the Smoke Alarms Solutions business. 

Special Responsibilities - None 

 

Matthew Driscoll - Non- Executive Director 

Experience - Qualifications:  BA, Dip Ed, Grad.Dip.App.Fin. SF Fin, 

MSAA, GAICD. 

Matthew has significant experience across several 

industries, including online technologies, financial 

services, fintech, cleantech, property and resources. He 

has more than 30 years’ experience in capital markets 

and the financial services industry and is an 

accomplished company Director in roles across listed 

and private companies. He has significant experience in 

international business growth, mergers and acquisitions, 

equity and debt raisings and building strategic alliances, 

and remains committed to ethical, commercial and 

consumer-based outcomes. 

Current Directorships: Chairman Smoke Alarms 

Holdings Limited, Chairman Carbonxt Limited (CG1), 

NED Energy Technologies Limited (EGY), Chairman 

Tennant Minerals NL (TMS). 

   

Stephen McAviney - Non- Executive Director 

Experience - Qualifications:  BCom FIPA FFA FTIA FGIA FCG. 

Stephen is an Accountant with over 40 years’ experience 

working on a wide range of entity’s specifically in the 

areas of Accounting, Corporate Governance, Finance, 

Management Consulting and Taxation. 

Stephen has been involved in the establishment of 2 

practices and at present is a Consultant to MM & Co 

Advisory a medium sized practice based in Sydney. 

Stephen has served as an officer of many varied entity’s 

over the last 40 years. 

Stephen resides at Centennial Park in Sydney’s Eastern 

Suburbs. 

Current Directorships: NED Smoke Alarms Holdings 

Limited, Manhattan Active Pty Limited and Ruley Pty 

Limited. 

 

Simon Harvey - Company Secretary 

  Simon Harvey resigned as Company Secretary effective 20th July 2021. 

  Stephen McAviney was appointed the new Company Secretary on the 20th of July 2021.   
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Meetings of Directors 

During the financial year, 14 meetings of directors (including committees of directors) were 

held. Attendances by each director during the year were as follows: 
 

 Directors’ Meetings 

 Number eligible to attend Number attended 

Cameron Davis 14 14 

Matthew Driscoll 14 14 

Stephen McAviney 14 14 
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Review of Operations 

The result of the company for the financial year after providing for income tax amounts to a 

loss of $710,539. A review of operations of the company during the year and the results of 

those operations found that during the year, the company continued to engage in its principal 

activity, the results of which are disclosed in the attached financial statements. 
 

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs 

No significant changes in the company’s state of affairs occurred during the financial year. 
 

Principal Activities 

The principal activity of the company during the financial year is to provide smoke alarm 

inspection and testing services. No other significant change in the nature of these activities 

occurred during the year. 

Events Subsequent to the End of the Reporting Year 

There are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial 

year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the consolidated 

group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated group in 

subsequent financial years apart from the sale of Digital Safety Solutions Pty Ltd to Fast Future 

Pty Ltd for the purchase price of $1. 
 

Dividends 

No dividends were declared or paid during the year. 
 

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company 

No person has applied for leave of court to bring proceedings on behalf of the company or 

intervene in any proceedings to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking 

responsibility on behalf of the company for all or any part of those proceedings. 

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year. 

Note 25 outlines a potential contingent liability for legal proceedings in which the Company is 

involved, is defending and has proactively lodged a counter claim.  
 

Environmental regulation 

The group’s operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a 

law of the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory. 
 

Indemnification of Officers 

The company has paid premiums to insure directors under a Directors and Officers insurance 

policy. The company has paid insurance premiums of $9,970 for the year from 27 July 2021 

in respect of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance which will covers current and former 

directors and officers, including executive officers of the entity and directors, executive officers 

and secretaries of its controlled entities. This amount has not been allocated to the individuals 

covered by the insurance policy as, based on all available information, the directors believe 

that no basis for the allocation exists. 

No indemnification has been obtained for any auditors of the company or the Group. 
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Auditor's Independence Declaration 

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under section 307C of the 

Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 6. 
 

No officer of the group is or has been a partner of any auditor of the group. 
 

This directors’ report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors: 

 

 

 
Chairman    dated this   15th   day of  November                  2021 

 
 

Director    

     



HALL CHADWICK�, (NSW) 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

ABN 61 605 400 066 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 

TO THE DIRECTORS OF SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to 
provide the following declaration of independence to the directors of Smoke Alarms 
Holdings Ltd. As the lead audit partner for the audit of the financial report of Smoke 
Alarms Holdings Ltd for the year ended 30 June 2021, I declare that, to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of: 

(i) the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001
in relation to the audit; and

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

HALL CHADWICK (NSW) 
Level 40, 2 Park Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 

DREW TOWNSEND 

Partner 
Dated: 15 November 2021

SYDNEY · PENRITH · MELBOURNE · BRISBANE · PERTH · DARWIN 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

www.hallchadwick.com.au 

SYDNEY 

Level 40 
2 Pork Sf reel 
Sydney NSW 2000 
Auslralia 

Ph: ( 612) 9263 2600 
Fx: (612)92632800 

A Member of PrimeGlobal 

An A.ssooation of lndep€nae-nt 
Accounhno Firns 

� PrimeGlobal 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 
 

 

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 Note 2021 2020 

    $ $ 

Revenue   28,347,475 20,048,017 

Cost of sales   (15,858,165) (11,589,168) 

Gross profit   12,489,310 8,458,849 

        

Other revenue   2,116,229 1,346,238 

Administrative and employee expenses   (7,991,462) (7,575,487) 

Legal expenses   (114,689) (162,322) 

Accounting and audit expenses   (44,119) (54,704) 

Advertising and marketing expenses   (273,623) (600,752) 

Consultants   (175,521) (63,087) 

Other administration expenses   (1,802,953) (2,141,709) 

Finance costs   (1,925,178) (765,574) 

Depreciation and amortisation 2 (3,122,935) (1,992,242) 

        

Loss before income tax expense    (844,941) (3,550,790) 

Income tax benefit  9 134,402 501,463 

Loss for the year   (710,539) (3,049,327) 

Other comprehensive income   - - 

Total comprehensive income for the 
year 

  (710,539) (3,049,327) 

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
 

 

POSITION 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 

 
 Note 2021 2020 

ASSETS   $ $ 

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents 4 3,385,281 1,370,960 

Trade and other receivables 5 1,449,816 681,192 

Inventories 6 2,145,595 728,348 

Other Assets 7 218,866 211,038 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   7,199,558 2,991,538 

        

NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

Property, plant and equipment 8 530,663 474,567 

Right-of-use assets 20 2,044,469 2,578,003 

Intangible assets 10 10,745,110 10,419,693 

Deferred tax assets 14 1,762,737 1,628,335 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   15,082,979 15,100,598 

TOTAL ASSETS   22,282,537 18,092,136 

        

LIABILITIES       

CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Trade and other payables 11 5,297,628 2,956,727 

Deferred revenue 12 1,713,936 1,802,221 

Financial liabilities 13 2,822,725 6,989,594 

Lease liabilities 20 1,381,385 1,013,869 

Provisions 15 843,643 761,304 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   12,059,317 13,523,715 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Trade and other payables 11 600,496 381,247 

Financial liabilities 13 7,284,414 715,000 

Lease liabilities 20 1,306,607 2,129,933 

Provisions 15 284,580 284,579 

TOTAL NON-CURRENT 

LIABILITIES 
  9,476,097 3,510,759 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   21,535,414 17,034,474 

NET ASSETS   747,123 1,057,662 

        

EQUITY       

Issued capital 16 10,718,396 10,318,396 

Reserves                      -    - 

Retained earnings   (9,971,273) (9,260,734) 

TOTAL EQUITY   747,123 1,057,662 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.   
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EQUITY 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 
No
te Issued Capital Reserves Retained Earnings Total 

    $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 30 June 2019     10,007,197      8,791    (6,211,407)      3,804,581  

Loss for the year   -  -  (3,049,327) (3,049,327) 

Issue of shares       311,199  -  -  311,199  

Reclassification to profit or loss 
on disposal of NZ business  - (8,791) - (8,791) 

Other comprehensive income  - - - - 

Balance at 30 June 2020     10,318,396            -    (9,260,734)      1,057,662  

Loss for the year   -  -        (710,539)        (710,539) 

Issue of shares   400,000  -  -  400,000 

Other comprehensive income  - - - - 

Balance at 30 June 2021     10,718,396            -    (9,971,273)    747,123  
 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2021 

 
 Note 2021 2020 

    $ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Receipts from customers   30,325,314 21,906,026 

Receipts from government (JobKeeper scheme)  2,116,000 964,000 

Payments to suppliers and employees   (27,877,894) (24,417,791) 

Interest received   258 319 

Interest paid   (1,296,650) (613,398) 

Income tax paid    591 

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 17 3,267,028 (2,160,253) 

        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Sale of NZ business   - 380,000 

IT investments   (2,378,799) (1,094,227) 

Purchase of plant and equipment   (222,213) (47,061) 

Net cash used in investing activities   (2,601,012) (761,288) 

        

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES       

Repayment of bank loan   (439,049) (120,000) 

Proceeds from issue of shares   - 120,000 

Proceeds from issue of convertible loans  200,000                                        -    

Repayment of convertible loan  (100,000) - 

Proceeds from borrowings  2,750,000 4,961,526 

Repayment of borrowings  (20,512) - 

Proceeds from short term loans  250,000 - 

Repayment of short term loans  (250,000) - 

Lease payments  (1,054,240) (936,933) 

Net cash provided by financing activities   1,336,199 4,024,593 

        

        

Net increase in cash held   2,002,215 1,103,052 

Cash at beginning of financial period   886,292 (216,760) 

Cash at end of financial period 17 2,888,507 886,292 

    

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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1)     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes represent those of Smoke 

Alarms Holdings Limited. Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited is a company limited by shares, 

incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 

The financial report includes Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited and its controlled entities. A 

list of controlled entities can be found at note 3. 

The Financial Statements were authorised for issue on 22 October 2021 by the Directors of 

Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited. 
 

Basis of Preparation 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations of the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board and International Financial Reporting Standards 

as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The Group is a for-profit entity 

for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. Material 

accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented 

below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. 

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared on an 

accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the 

measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial 

liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the 

nearest dollar. 

Going Concern Basis 

The consolidated entity has made a loss of $710,539, had net cash inflow from operations 

of $3,267,028 for the year ended 30 June 2021 and a positive net asset position of 

$747,123 as at 30 June 2021. 

The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes the 

realisation of assets and the discharge of liabilities in the normal course of business. 

The directors believe the going concern basis is appropriate due to: 

The consolidated entity has a recurring source of operating income from smoke alarm 

inspection and testing services provided by its subsidiary, Smoke Alarm Solutions Pty 

Limited; and 

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts which include conservative growth 

estimates that show the company can continue to pay its debts as and when they fall 

due. However, in order to meet expenditure in the near future the company will need to 

raise capital to overcome revenue seasonality and working capital requirements.  

The company has a loan of $8,034,414 with Fast Future Pty Ltd, a Randall Deer related 

entity. Subsequent to the financial year, the Company renegotiated the loan, and a 

repayment schedule was agreed on. Quarterly repayments of $250,000 start on 8 

December 2021, with a final repayment date of 8 September 2023. 

The Company renegotiated payments plans with the ATO for PAYG and GST owing totaling 

$1,620,496 ($1,255,837 outstanding as at 30 June 2021) being repaid in monthly 

payments of $60,000. 

Based on the above, the directors are satisfied that the consolidated entity will be able to 

fund its operations and continue as a going concern, and it is appropriate that the financial 

statements have been prepared on that basis.  
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Accounting Policies 

(a) Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate all of the assets, liabilities and results of 

the parent Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited and of the subsidiaries (including any structured 

entities). Subsidiaries are entities the parent controls. The parent controls an entity when it 

is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and 

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. A list of the 

subsidiaries is provided in Note 3. 

The assets, liabilities and results of all subsidiaries are fully consolidated into the financial 

statements of the Group from the date on which control is obtained by the Group. The 

consolidation of a subsidiary is discontinued from the date that control ceases. Intercompany 

transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between group entities 

are fully eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed 

and adjustments made where necessary to ensure uniformity of the accounting policies adopted 

by the Group. 

Equity interests in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Group are 

presented as “non-controlling interests”. The Group initially recognises non-controlling interests 

that are present ownership interests in subsidiaries and are entitled to a proportionate share 

of the subsidiary’s net assets on liquidation at either fair value or at the non-controlling 

interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, 

non-controlling interests are attributed their share of profit or loss and each component of other 

comprehensive income. Non-controlling interest are shown separately within the equity section 

of the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income. 
 

(b) Business Combinations 

Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses. 

A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a 

combination involving entities or businesses under common control. The business combination 

will be accounted for from the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the 

identifiable assets acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) assumed is 

recognised (subject to certain limited exemptions). 

When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or 

liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to 

initial recognition, contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its 

subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an 

asset or liability is remeasured in each reporting year to fair value, recognising any change to 

fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can be identified as existing at acquisition 

date. 

All transaction costs incurred in relation to business combinations, other than those 

associated with the issue of a financial instrument, are recognised as expenses in profit or 

loss when incurred. 

 

(c) Goodwill 

Goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is calculated  as 

the excess of the sum of: 

i) the consideration transferred; 

ii) any non-controlling interest (determined under either the full goodwill or 

proportionate interest method); and 

iii) the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest; 

over the acquisition date fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. 

The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination 

plus the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost 
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of the investment in the separate financial statements. 

Fair value remeasurements in any pre-existing equity holdings are recognised in profit or loss 

in the year in which they arise. Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had 

previously been recognised in other comprehensive income, such amounts are recycled to 

profit or loss. 

The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds 

less than 100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling 

interest. The Group can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in 

the acquire either at fair value (full goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest’s 

proportionate share of the subsidiary’s identifiable net assets (proportionate interest method). 

In such circumstances, the Group determines which method to adopt for each acquisition and 

this is stated in the respective notes to these financial statements disclosing the business 

combination. 

Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interests is determined 

using valuation techniques which make the maximum use of market information where 

available. Under this method, goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests is recognised 

in the consolidated financial statements. 

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries in included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition 

of associates is included in investments in associates. 

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units 

or groups of cash-generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is 

monitored, being not larger than an operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an 

entity include the carrying amount of goodwill related to the entity disposed of. 

Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 

accounted for as equity transactions and do not affect the carrying amounts of goodwill. 
 

(d) Income Tax 

The income tax expense (income) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) 

and deferred tax expense (income). 

Current income tax expense charged to profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income. 

Current tax liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid 

to(recovered from) the relevant taxation authority. 

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability 

balances during the year as well as unused tax losses. 

Current and deferred income tax expense/(income) is charged or credited directly to equity 

instead of profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to 

equity. 

Except for business combinations, no deferred income tax is recognised from the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or 

loss. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply 

to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, and their measurement also 

reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount 

of the related asset or liability. 

With respect to non-depreciable items of property, plant and equipment measured at fair 

value and items of investment property measured at fair value, the related deferred tax 

liability or deferred tax asset is measured on the basis that the carrying amount of the asset 

will be recovered entirely through sale. When an investment property that is depreciable is 

held by the Group in a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the 

economic benefits embodied in the property through use over time (rather than through sale), 

the related deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset is measured on the basis that the 

carrying amount of such property will be recovered entirely through use. 
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Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised 

only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which 

the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised. 

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, 

associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the 

timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that 

the reversal will occur in the foreseeable future. 

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists 

and it is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the 

respective asset and liability will occur. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where: 

i. a legally enforceable right of set-off exists; and 

ii. the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it is 

intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the 

respective asset and liability will occur in future years in which significant amounts of 

deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. 
 

(e) Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities 

The Group measures some of its assets and liabilities at fair value on either a recurring or non-

recurring basis, depending on the requirements of the applicable Accounting Standard. 

Fair value is the price the Group would receive to sell an asset or would have to pay to transfer 

a liability in an orderly (i.e. unforced) transaction between independent, knowledgeable and 

willing market participants at the measurement date. 

As fair value is a market-based measure, the closest equivalent observable market pricing 

information is used to determine fair value. Adjustments to market values may be made having 

regard to the characteristics of the specific asset or liability. The fair values of assets and 

liabilities that are not traded in an active market are determined using one or more valuation 

techniques. These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable 

market data. 

To the extent possible, market information is extracted from either the principal market for 

the asset or liability (i.e. the market with the greatest volume and level of activity for the 

asset or liability), or, in the absence of such a market, the most advantageous market 

available to the entity at the end of the reporting year (i.e. the market that maximises the 

receipts from the sale of the asset or minimises the payments made to transfer the liability, 

after taking into account transaction costs and transport costs). 

For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement also takes into account a market 

participant’s ability to use the asset in its highest and best use or to sell it to another market 

participant that would uses the asset in its highest and best use. 

The fair value of liabilities and the entity’s own equity instruments (excluding those related 

to share-based payment arrangements) may be valued, where there is no observable market 

price in relation to the transfer of such financial instrument, by reference to observable 

market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is not 

available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed in the 

respective note to the financial statements. 
 

(f) Plant and Equipment 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value, as indicated, 

less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
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Plant and equipment 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying 

amount of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying 

amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount and impairment 

losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a revaluation decrease if the impairment 

losses relate to a revalued asset. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when 

impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1(i) for details of impairment). 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, 

as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 

will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 

maintenance are recognised as expenses in profit or loss in the financial year in which they are 

incurred. 

 

Depreciation 

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and capitalised lease assets but 

excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis or diminishing balance basis 

over the asset’s useful life to the Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for 

use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired year of 

the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

 
Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate 

Plant and equipment 10 – 40% straight line 

Computer equipment 20 - 50% straight line 

Furniture and fittings 10 - 15% straight line 

Motor vehicles 20% straight line 

 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 

end of each reporting year. 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the 

asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying 

amount. These gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. 

When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that 

asset are transferred to retained earnings. 
 

(g) Financial Instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the Group 
commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie trade date accounting is adopted). 

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs, except where the instrument is classified "at fair value through profit or loss", 
in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss immediately. Where available, 
quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, 
valuation techniques are adopted. 
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Trade receivables are initially measured at the transaction price if the trade receivables do not 
contain a significant financing component or if the practical expedient was applied as specified 
in AASB 15.63. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities 

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument 
and of allocating interest expense in profit or loss over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the internal rate of return of the financial asset or liability. That is, it is the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the instrument to 
the net carrying amount at initial recognition. 

A financial liability cannot be reclassified. 

Financial assets 

Measurement is on the basis of two primary criteria: 

 • the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset; and 

 • the business model for managing the financial assets. 

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is subsequently measured at amortised 
cost: 

 • the financial asset is managed solely to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 • the contractual terms within the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified 
dates. 

By default, all other financial assets that do not meet the measurement conditions of amortised 
cost are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 

Derecognition 

Derecognition refers to the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability 
from the statement of financial position. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A liability is derecognised when it is extinguished (ie when the obligation in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires). An exchange of an existing financial liability for a new one 
with substantially modified terms, or a substantial modification to the terms of a financial liability 
is treated as an extinguishment of the existing liability and recognition of a new financial liability. 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, 
is recognised in profit or loss. 

Derecognition of financial assets 

A financial asset is derecognised when the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, 
or the asset is transferred in such a way that all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
substantially transferred. 

All of the following criteria need to be satisfied for derecognition of financial asset: 

 • the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired or been transferred; 

 • all risk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantially transferred; and 

 • the Group no longer controls the asset (ie the Group has no practical ability to make a 
unilateral decision to sell the asset to a third party). 

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the 
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised 
in profit or loss. 
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Impairment 

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on: 

 • financial assets that are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income; 

 • lease receivables; 

 • contract assets (eg amounts due from customers under construction contracts); 

Expected credit losses are the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. A credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows 
that are due and all cash flows expected to be received, all discounted at the original effective 
interest rate of the financial instrument. 

The Group uses the following approaches to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9: Financial 
Instruments: 

 • the general approach 

 • the simplified approach 

General approach 

Under the general approach, at each reporting period, the Group assesses whether the financial 
instruments are credit-impaired, and if: 

 • the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance of the financial instruments at an 
amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses; or 

 • there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group measures 
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected 
credit losses. 

Simplified approach 

The simplified approach does not require tracking of changes in credit risk at every reporting 
period, but instead requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit loss at all times. This 
approach is applicable to: 

 • trade receivables or contract assets that result from transactions within the scope of 
AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers and which do not contain a significant 
financing component; and 

 • lease receivables. 

In measuring the expected credit loss, a provision matrix for trade receivables was used taking 
into consideration various data to get to an expected credit loss (ie diversity of customer base, 
appropriate groupings of historical loss experience, etc). 

Recognition of expected credit losses in financial statements 

At each reporting date, the Group recognises the movement in the loss allowance as an 
impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

The carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost includes the loss allowance 
relating to that asset. 

Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognised at fair value, 
with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income. Amounts in relation to 
change in credit risk are transferred from other comprehensive income to profit or loss at every 
reporting period. 

For financial assets that are unrecognised (eg loan commitments yet to be drawn, financial 
guarantees), a provision for loss allowance is created in the statement of financial position to 
recognise the loss allowance. 

(h) Impairment of Assets 

At the end of each reporting year, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an 

asset may be impaired. The assessment will include considering external sources of information 

and internal sources of information including dividends received  from subsidiaries, associates 

or jointly controlled entities deemed to be out of pre-acquisition profits. If such an indication 
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exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by comparing the recoverable amount of 

the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, to the 

asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount 

is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount in 

accordance with another Standard (e.g. in accordance with the revaluation model in AASB 116: 

Property, Plant and Equipment). Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a 

revaluation decrease in accordance with that other Standard. 

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group 

estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives 

and intangible assets not yet available for use. 
 

(i) Intangibles other than goodwill 
 

Customer Lists 

Customer Lists are capitalised at cost. Where Customer Lists have been acquired as part of a 

business acquisition, these assets are recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. The 

useful lives of these assets are determined based on the businesses history in relation to 

customer turnover or “churn”. 

IT Expenditure 

IT Expenditure is capitalised at cost. The useful life of this asset is determined based on 

management’s estimate of the useful life of the customised IT system before it is likely to be 

substantially redeveloped or replaced. 

The amortised rates used for each class of intangible assets with a finite life are: 
 

Class of Intangible Asset Amortisation Rate 

Business Records and Business Materials 33.3% 

Customer Lists 20% 

Capitalised IT Expenditure 20% 

 

(j) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-

term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank 

overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on 

the statement of financial position. 
 

(k) Revenue and Other Income 
 

The Group provides smoke alarm inspection and testing services under fixed-price contracts. 

Revenue from these services is recognised on a time and material basis as services are 

provided. Refer to note 1(p) for further details. Where customers are invoiced in advance, the 

difference between the invoice and the recognised revenue is recorded as deferred revenue.  

 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate 

financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when 

the right to receive a dividend has been established. 

 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 
 

(l) Trade and Other Receivables 

Other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised 
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cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment. 

 

(m) Trade and Other Payables 

Trade and other payables represent the liabilities for goods and services received by the entity 

that remain unpaid at the end of the reporting year. The balance is recognised as a current 

liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability. 
 

(n) Goods and Services Tax (GST) 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the 

amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The 

net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables 

or payables in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from 

investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are 

presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or payments to 

suppliers. 
 

(o) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments 

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements 

based on historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a 

reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and economic  data, 

obtained both externally and within the Group. 

Key estimates 

Deferral of Income 

The group calculates deferred income based on an average number of visits per contract per 

annum. This is based on current and historical data of the numbers of visits required to service 

a contract. 

Employee Benefits 

For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119: Employee Benefits defines obligations for short-

term employee benefits as obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after 

the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services. As 

the Group expects that all its employees would use all their annual leave entitlements earned 

during a reporting period before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the directors 

consider that obligations for annual leave entitlements satisfy the definition of short-term 

employee benefits and, therefore, can be measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected 

to be paid to employees when the obligations are settled. 
 

Key Judgements 

Provision for impairment 

Included in trade receivables at the end of the reporting period is a credit loss provision for 

the amount of $51,891. The provision for loss allowance of receivables assessment requires a 

degree of estimation and judgement. The level of provision is assessed by taking into account 

the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumptions to 

allocate an overall expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent 

sales experience and historical collection rates. 
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(p) Leases (the Group as lessee) 

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses if the contract contains or is a lease. If there 
is a lease present, a right-use asset and a corresponding lease liability is recognized by the 
Group where the Group is a lessee. However all contracts that are classified as short-term 
leases (lease with remaining lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets 
are recognized as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Initially the lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments still to be 
paid at commencement date. The lease payments are discounted at the interest rate implicit 
in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses the incremental 
borrowing rate.  

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are as follows: 

- fixed lease payments less any lease incentives; 

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the 
index or rate at the commencement date 

- the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees 

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability 
as mentioned above, any lease payments made at or before commencement date as well as 
any initial direct costs. The subsequent measurement of the right-to-use assets is at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset 
whichever is the shortest. 

 

(q) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 

(r) Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Group’s (including the parent’s) obligation for short-term employee 

benefits. Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other than termination benefits) that  

are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting year 

in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. 

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be 

paid when the obligation is settled. 

The Group’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick 

leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial 

position. The Group’s obligations for employees’ annual leave and long service leave 

entitlements are recognised as provisions in the statement of financial position. 

Other long-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements not 

expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting year in 

which the employees render the related service. Other long-term employee benefits are 

measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. 

Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of 

service and employee departures and are discounted at rates determined by reference to 

market yields at the end of the reporting year on government bonds that have maturity dates 

that approximate the terms of the obligations. Upon the remeasurement of  obligations due 

to change in assumptions for other long-term employee benefits, the net change in the 

obligation is recognised in profit or loss as a part of employee benefits expense in the years 

in which the changes occur. 

The Group’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current 

provisions in its statement of financial position, except where the Group does not have an 

unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting 

year, in which case the obligations are presented as current provisions. 
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(s) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of 

past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that 

outflow can be reliably measured. 

Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the 

obligation at the end of the reporting year. 
 

 2021 

$ 

2020 

$ 

2. PROFIT/LOSS FOR THE YEAR 
 

Profit/Loss before income tax from continuing operations includes the 

following specific expenses: 

 
Expenses: 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 166,151 173,653 

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 903,402 1,097,097 

Amortisation of intangible assets and write-offs  2,053,382 721,492 

 3,122,935 1,994,242 
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3. CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

 Principal place of 

business 

Percentage owned/ 

controlled 

 

SAS No. 1 Pty Ltd Australia 100%  

Smoke Alarm Solutions Pty Ltd Australia 100%  

Smoke Alarm Solutions Admin Pty Ltd (inactive) Australia 100%  

RE8 Investments Pty Ltd (inactive) Australia 100%  

Digital Safety Solutions Pty Ltd Australia 100%  

 

 
 

4.    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Cash at bank  3,385,281  1,370,960 

 
3,385,281 1,370,960 

 
 

   5.    TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2021 2020 

           Current $ $ 

Trade and other receivables 1,501,707 733,083 

Provision for impairment (51,891) (51,891) 

 
1,449,816 681,192 

 
Credit risk: 

 
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty 

or group of counterparties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned 

within Note 5. 

The Group has a significant concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary course of 

business due to its relatively small customer base. The class of assets described as “trade and 

term receivables” is considered to be the main source of credit risk related to the Group. 

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime 

expected credit loss. The expected credit losses on trade receivables is estimated using a 

provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the 

debtor's current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general 

economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both 

the current and forecast directions of conditions at the reporting date. 

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during 

the current reporting period. 

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is 

in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery (eg when the debtor 

has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the 

trade receivables are over one year past due, whichever occurs earlier). 
  



ABN 61 605 400 066 | Financial Statements 30 June 2021 

23
13 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

S
m

o
k
e
 A

la
rm

s 
H

o
ld

in
g
s 

L
td

 |
  2

0
2

1
 

 

  
Gross 

Amount 

Loss 
Allowance 
Provision 

Past Due  
Current 

(Days Overdue) 

      < 30 31–60 > 60   

2021 $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Trade receivables 1,501,706 (51,891) 326,484 28,501 82,183 1,064,538 

Total 1,501,706 (51,891) 326,484 28,501 82,183 1,064,538 

 

             

2020 

Trade receivables 733,083 (51,891) 41,287 (1,049) 119,334 573,511 

Total 733,083 (51,891) 41,287 (1,049) 119,334 573,511 

 
 

 

 
6. INVENTORIES 2021 2020 

 Current $ $ 

 Finished goods  2,145,595 728,348 

Total Inventories 2,145,595 728,348 

 

 

 

  7.      OTHER ASSETS 2021 2020 

 $ $ 

Term deposit 171,217 186,437 

Deposits with suppliers 33,048 - 

Prepayments 14,601 24,601 

Total Other Assets 218,866       211,038 
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8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2021 2020 

Plant and Equipment $ $ 

Plant and equipment at cost 91,043 91,043 

Accumulated depreciation (70,837) (54,465) 

Total Plant and Equipment 20,206 36,578 

   

Computer Equipment   

Computer equipment at cost 313,642 278,729 

Accumulation depreciation (253,212) (206,376) 

Total Computer Equipment 60,430 72,353 

   

Furniture and Fittings   

Furniture and fittings at cost 634,213 634,213 

Accumulation depreciation (371,061) (268,578) 

Total Furniture and Fittings 263,152 365,635 

   

Motor Vehicles   

Motor Vehicles at cost  187,304 - 

Accumulation depreciation (430) - 

Total Motor Vehicles 186,874 - 

   

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 530,663 474,566 
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Movement in carrying amounts for each class of plant and equipment between balances at the 
beginning and end of the year: 
 2021 2020 

Plant and Equipment $ $ 

Balance at beginning of year 36,578 52,951 

Additions               -                  -    

Depreciation (16,372) (16,373) 

Plant and Equipment balance at end of year 20,206 36,578 

 
  

Computer Equipment   

Balance at beginning of year 72,353 79,580 

Additions 34,913 47,562 

Depreciation (46,836) (54,789) 

Computer Equipment balance at end of year 60,430 72,353 

 
  

Furniture and Fittings   

Balance at beginning of year 365,635 468,626 

Additions - 1,020 

Disposals - (1,520) 

Depreciation (102,483) (102,491) 

Foreign Exchange - - 

Furniture and Fittings balance at end of year 263,152 365,635 

   

Motor Vehicles   

Balance at beginning of year              -    
             

1,212,018    

Additions 187,304 - 

Depreciation (430) - 

Reclassified to right-of-use assets  - (1,212,018) 

Motor Vehicles balance at end of year 186,874 - 

 
 

9. TAX   

Income tax expense 2021 2020 

(a) The components of income tax expense comprise: $ $ 

-      current tax - -  

-      deferred tax (245,250) (501,463) 

-      (over)/under provision in prior year 110,848 - 

  (134,402) (501,463) 

(b) The prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities before income 
tax is reconciled to the income tax as follows: 

   

-      Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities before 

income tax at 26% (2020: 27.5%) 
(310,318) (976,467) 



ABN 61 605 400 066 | Financial Statements 30 June 2021 

26
13 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

S
m

o
k
e
 A

la
rm

s 
H

o
ld

in
g
s 

L
td

 |
  2

0
2

1
 

Tax effect of:    

-      other non-allowable items 35,839 150,920 

            -      Reversal of DTA recognised in NZ subsidiary  - 234,274 

-      Change of deferred tax rate from 26% to 25% (2020: 27.5% to 
26%) 

55,229 84,369 

-      (over)/under provision in prior year 110,848 - 

-      Reversal of DTA recognised on timing differences and losses - 5,441 

-      Non-assessable items (26,000) - 

Income tax benefit (134,402) (501,463) 

 
10.    INTANGIBLE ASSETS  2021 2020 

  Goodwill   $ $ 

  Cost   7,955,964 7,955,964 

  Impairment   - - 

  Net carrying amount   7,955,964 7,955,964 

  Customer Lists       

  Cost    692,277 692,277 

  Amortisation charge   (692,277) (600,901) 

  Net carrying amount   - 91,376 

  Capitalised IT expenditure       

  Cost   5,926,874 3,548,075 

  Amortisation charge and write-offs    (3,137,728) (1,175,722) 

  Net carrying amount   2,789,146 2,372,353 

  Total Intangible Assets       

  Cost   14,575,115 12,196,316 

  Accumulated impairment and amortisation (3,830,005) (3,037,293) 

  Net carrying amount   10,745,110 10,419,693 

          

a)   Movements in carrying amounts    

 Goodwill      

  Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 7,955,964 7,955,964 

  Impairment                    -                    -    

  Net carrying amount   7,955,964 7,955,964 

  Customer Lists       

  Balance at the beginning of the reporting period   91,376 229,831 

  Additions   - - 

  Amortisation expenses   (91,376) (138,455) 

  Net carrying amount   - 91,376 

  Capitalised IT expenditure     

  Balance at the beginning of the reporting period   2,372,353 1,861,164 

  Additions   2,378,799 1,094,227 

  Amortisation expenses and write-offs    (1,962,006) (583,038) 

  Net carrying amount     2,789,146    2,372,353  

Intangible assets, other than goodwill, have finite useful lives. The current amortisation 

charges for intangible assets are included under depreciation and amortisation expense per 
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the statement of profit or loss. Goodwill has an indefinite useful life. 

Impairment disclosures 

Goodwill is allocated to the one cash generating unit of the business (services). 

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is determined based on the higher of fair 

value less cost of disposal and value-in-use calculations. Fair value less cost of disposal is 

calculated based on management’s measured and reasonable expectation of selling price 

achievable in the open market at a revenue multiple appropriate for the market the business 

operates. 

Value-in-use is calculated based on the present value of cash flow projections over a 5-year 

period with the year extending beyond 1 year extrapolated using an estimated growth rate. The 

cash flows are discounted using a discount rate of 10%. Management has based the value-in-

use calculations on the budget for the reporting segment. This budget uses growth rates of 1% 

- 4% to project revenue. Discount rates are pre-tax and are adjusted to incorporate risks 

associated with a particular segment. 
 

11. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES  
2021 2020 

Current  $ $ 

Trade payables 2,787,858 1,233,049 

ATO payment plans 1,020,000 874,590 

Other payables 1,489,770 849,088 

Total current trade and other payables 5,297,628 2,956,727 

NON-CURRENT    

ATO payment plans 600,496 381,247 

                Total non-current trade and other payables 600,496 381,247 

   

 

11. 

 

DEFERRED REVENUE 

 
2021 2020 

 
  $ $ 

Current 1,713,936 1,802,221 

            Total deferred revenue 1,713,936 1,802,221 

13.     FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  

Current 2021 2020 

Unsecured liabilities: $ $ 

Bank overdraft 496,774 484,668 

Microsoft Loan - 20,512 

Convertible loans 500,000 400,000 

Fast Future Loan 750,000 5,284,414 

Secured liabilities:   

Bank loans 1,075,951 800,000 

Total current borrowings 2,822,725 6,989,594 

 

Non Current 

 

Unsecured liabilities:  
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Fast Future Loan 7,284,414 - 

Secured liabilities:   

Bank loans - 715,000 

Total non-current borrowings 7,284,414   715,000   

The Westpac loan was refinanced and extended in November 2020. Scheduled repayments 

under the new agreement started in November 2020 and the loan was extended to April 

2022. As at 30 June 2021 the facility had been paid down to $1,075,951.  

The total facility is secured by a fixed and floating charge over the assets of a number of 

entities in the Consolidated Group. 
 

14. TAX BALANCES 
 
 

 2021 2020 

Non-current assets $ $ 

Deferred tax assets 1,662,737 1,628,335 

 
 Balance as 

at 30 June 

2021 

 
(Charged) 

/Credited 

to Income 

 
(Charged) 

/Credited 

to Equity 

Balance as at 

1 July 

2020 

Consolidated Group $ $ $ $ 

Deferred tax assets 
    

Carried forward tax losses 
1,193,359 222,087 -     871,272 

Benefit of tax offsets 384,104 - - 384,104 

Timing differences 185,274 (187,685) - 372,959 

 
1,762,737 134,402 

- 
1,628,335 

 

15. 
 

PROVISIONS 
  

 Employee Entitlements 843,643 761,304 

 
Total current provisions 843,643 761,304 

 
Employee Entitlements 284,580 284,579 

 
Total non-current provisions 284,580 284,579 

    

 

 
 

   

 

 

16. 

 

ISSUED CAPITAL 

  

  
2021 

$ 

2020 

$ 
 

58,861,255 (2020: 55,661,255) fully paid ordinary shares 11,422,006 11,022,006 

 
Less Transaction costs (703,610) (703,610) 

 
Total Issued Capital   10,718,396   10,318,396 



ABN 61 605 400 066 | Financial Statements 30 June 2021 

29
13 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

S
m

o
k
e
 A

la
rm

s 
H

o
ld

in
g
s 

L
td

 |
  2

0
2

1
 

The company has authorised share capital amounting to 58,861,255 ordinary shares with 

no par value. 

Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the company 

in proportion to the number of shares held. 

At the shareholders’ meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is 

called, otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. 

Movements in issued capital   

Fully paid ordinary shares No. No. 

At the beginning of the reporting year 55,661,255 53,620,701 

Shares issued during the year 3,200,000 2,040,554 

Shares at the end of the reporting year 58,861,255 55,661,255 

Capital management 

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maintain a satisfactory debt to 

equity ratio and to ensure that the Group can fund its operations and continue as a going 

concern. 
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17. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES WITH PROFIT AFTER 
INCOME TAX 

 Note 2021 2020 

    $ $ 

CASH FLOW INFORMATION       

Reconciliation of cash flow from Operations  

with Loss after Income Tax       

Loss after income tax   (710,539) (3,049,327) 

        

Non-cash flows in profit        

-              Depreciation and amortisation   3,122,935 1,992,242 

-              Profit on sale of business   - (408,128) 

-          Shares issued in lieu of directors fees payable  - 191,199 

-          Shares issued in lieu of borrowing costs payable   400,000 - 

-              Interest expense - leases  228,528 152,176 

Changes in assets and liabilities     

Decrease/(Increase) in:       

- Receivables   (768,624) 94,400 

- Prepayments         (7,828)          (25,229)    

- Inventories   (1,417,247) (268,516) 

- Deferred tax assets   (134,402) (501,463) 

- Income tax    - 591 

- Payables   2,560,150 (242,645) 

- Deferred revenue   (88,285) (241,192) 

- Provisions   82,340 145,639 

Cash flow from operations   3,267,028 (2,160,253) 

        

Reconciliation of cash       

Cash and cash equivalents 5 3,385,281 1,370,960 

Bank overdraft 13 (496,774) (484,668) 

 Balance per statement of cash flows   2,888,507 886,292 

 

18. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION   

    

 Auditing or reviewing the financial statements 30,000 27,800 

 Taxation services 14,000 10,436 

 44,000 37,436 
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19. PARENT INFORMATION     

 The following information has been extracted from the books and records for the parent and is 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 

    

 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2021 2020 

  ASSETS $ $ 

 Current Assets 15,153 - 

  Non-Current Assets 8,694,230 8,362,833 

  TOTAL ASSETS 8,709,383 8,362,833 

  LIABILITIES     

  Current Liabilities - 41,027 

  Non-Current Liabilities 4,308,432 4,315,546 

  TOTAL LIABILITES 4,308,432 4,356,573 

  EQUITY     

  Share Capital 10,718,396 10,318,396 

  Retained Earnings (6,317,445) (6,551,812) 

  TOTAL EQUITY 4,400,951 3,766,584 

      

 STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

  Total Loss (506,772) (321,998) 

  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (506,772) (321,998) 

 

20. LEASES  
 

 

The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to leases: 

Right-of-use assets   

Buildings 571,255 834,912 

Equipment 160,031 201,778 

Vehicles 1,313,183 1,541,313 

  2,044,469 2,578,003 

 

 

Lease liabilities 

  

Current 1,381,385 1,013,869 

Non-Current 1,306,607 2,129,933 

  2,687,992 3,143,802 

 

 

 Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year were $369,898. 
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21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING YEAR 
 

There are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the 

financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations 

of the consolidated group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of 

the consolidated group in subsequent financial years apart from: 

- Digital Safety Solutions Pty Ltd was sold to Fast Future Pty Ltd for the 

purchase price of $1. Digital Safety Solutions is the entity that houses the 

intellectual property, capitalised development costs and contingent liability 

for the Thinxtra project. 

 

 
22. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 2021 2020 

  
The totals of remunerations paid to KMP of the company 

and the Group during the year are as follows: 
$ $ 

  Short term employment benefits 574,017 414,706 

  Total KMP* compensation 574,017 414,706 

*KMP are: Cameron Davis (Managing Director and CEO) $514,017 (FY20: $344,190), Matthew Driscoll $30,000 
(FY20: $59,516) and Stephen McAviney $30,000 (FY19: $11,000). 

 

 

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related Parties 

The Group’s main related parties are as follows: 

 

i) Entities exercising control over the group 

The ultimate controlling entity is Smoke Alarms Holdings Pty Limited, a company 

incorporated in Australia. 

ii) Key management personnel 

Any persons having authority for planning, directing and controlling the activities 

of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director whether executive or 

otherwise) of that entity are considered key management personnel. 

iii) Other related parties 

Other related parties include entities controlled by the ultimate parent entity. 

 Transactions with related parties   

Transactions between related parties are on normal terms and conditions no more 

favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. 

Former Director Randal Deer is considered a related party pursuant to S228(5) of 

the Corporations Act 2001, which states he would remain a related party for 6 

months after his resignation. Randall Deer resigned as a director on 24th March 

2020.  

The following transactions occurred with related parties: 
    

 Amounts paid to related parties 2021 2020 

  $ $ 

i) Ignite travel Pty Limited1
 3,646 - 

ii) Resort Rewards Pty Limited2 - 33,000 

iii) Fast Future Pty Limited3 982,712 306,303 

1 Related party to former Director Randall Deer. For organisation of travel for Smoke Alarms 



ABN 61 605 400 066 | Financial Statements 30 June 2021 

33
13 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

S
m

o
k
e
 A

la
rm

s 
H

o
ld

in
g
s 

L
td

 |
  2

0
2

1
 

Holdings former Director Randall Deer when travelling to the Smoke Alarms Holdings Board 

meetings and other related events. 
2 Related party to former Director Randall Deer. Smoke Alarms Holdings Holiday Rewards 

Loyalty Program for clients. The Company purchases Holiday Reward Points at the same rate 

as advertised on the Holiday Rewards PLUS website. The loyalty program involves SAS clients 

obtaining reward points for properties registered. A certain quantum of points enables the 

client to get below market price holidays  
3 Related party to former Director Randall Deer. Payments to Fast Future Pty Ltd relate to 

Interest and Fees on the loan. 
 

 

     

 Amounts received from related parties 2021 2020  

  $ $  

i) Fast Future Pty Limited  2,750,000 4,961,526  

 

During the current financial year, Fast Future Pty Ltd advanced SAHL a further $2,750,000. 

The total loan balance outstanding as at 30 June 2021 was $8,034,414. 

The loan was renegotiated subsequent to the financial year. The loan accrues interest at an 

annual rate of 9% under the new agreement, with interest payments monthly. 

SAHL paid $982,712 of Interest and Fees to Fast Future during the current financial year. 

 

Repayment terms of the loan is as follows: $250,000 is repayable quarterly starting December 

2021, an additional repayment of $1,000,000 is due in September 2022, with the remaining 

$5,284,414 being repayable on 8 September 2023. 

 
24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT    

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, borrowings, lease 

liabilities, accounts receivable and payable. 

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the consolidated entity’s 

operations. The consolidated entity has various other financial assets and liabilities such as 

trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. It is, and has 

been throughout the entire year under review, the consolidated entity’s policy that no 

trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken. 

 

The totals for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 

9: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement as detailed in the accounting 

policies to these financial statements, is as follows: 

 

 
 2021 2020 

Financial assets $ $ 

   

      

Cash and cash equivalents 3,385,281 1,370,960 

Loans and receivables 1,449,816 681,192 

Total financial assets 4,835,097 2,052,152 

    

Financial liabilities     

Financial liabilities at amortised cost:     

Trade and other payables 5,898,124 3,337,974 
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Borrowings 10,107,139 7,704,594 

Lease liabilities 2,687,992 3,143,802 

Total financial liabilities 18,693,255 14,186,370 

 
 

The Board and CEO manage the financial risk exposures of the group and approve financial 

transactions within a set delegation of authority. 

The overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its 

financial targets, while minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance including 

the review of credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements. 

 
Specific Financial Risk Exposures and Management 

The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity 

risk and market risk consisting of interest rate risk. There have been no substantive changes 

in the types of risks the Group is exposed to, how these risks arise, or the Board’s objectives, 

policies and processes for managing or measuring the risks from the previous year. 

Credit risk 
  

Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non- performance 

by counterparties of contract obligations that could lead to a financial loss to the Group. 

Credit risk is managed through the maintenance of procedures (such as the utilisation of 

systems for the approval, granting and renewal of subscriptions, regular monitoring of 

exposures against such limits and monitoring of the financial stability of significant customers 

and counterparties), ensuring to the extent possible that customers and counterparties to 

transactions are of sound credit worthiness. Such monitoring is used in assessing receivables 

for impairment. Depending on the division within the Group, credit terms are generally 30 days 

from the invoice date. 

Risk is also minimised through investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a 

high credit rating. 

 

Credit risk exposures 
  

The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at the end of the 

reporting year excluding the value of any collateral or other security held, is equivalent to the 

carrying amount and classification of those financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented 

in the statement of financial position. Credit risk also arises through the provision of financial 

guarantees, as approved at board level, given to parties securing the liabilities of certain 

subsidiaries. 

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk with any single counterparty or 

group of counterparties. However, on a geographical basis, the Group has significant credit 

risk exposures to Australia. 

 

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are considered to be 

of high credit quality. 

Credit risk related to balances with banks and other financial institutions is managed by 

the CFO in accordance with approved board policy. Such policy requires that surplus funds 

are only invested with a major Australian bank. 
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Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling 

its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Group 

manages this risk through the following mechanisms: 

• preparing forward-looking cash flow analyses in relation to its operating, investing 

and financing activities; 
• monitoring undrawn credit facilities; 

• maintaining a reputable credit profile; 

• managing credit risk related to financial assets; 

• only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and 

• comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of 

financial assets. 

The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. 
Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectation as to the timing 
of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing of cash 
flows presented in the table to  settle  financial  liabilities  reflects the earliest contractual 
settlement dates. 

 Within 1 
Year 

1 to 5 Years 
Over 5 
Years 

Total 

 2021 2021 2021 2021 

Consolidated Group $ $ $ $ 

Financial liabilities due for payment       

Trade and other payables  5,297,628 600,496 - 5,898,124 

Borrowings 2,822,725 7,284,414 - 10,107,139 

Lease liabilities 1,381,385 1,306,607 - 2,687,992 

Total contractual outflows 9,501,738 9,191,517 - 18,693,255 

Financial assets – cash flows 
realisable 

      

Cash and cash equivalents 3,385,281 - - 3,385,281 

Trade, term and loan receivables 1,449,816 - - 1,449,816 

Total anticipated inflows  4,835,097 
                          
-    

- 4,835,097 

Net (outflow)/ inflow on financial 
instruments 

(4,666,641) (9,191,517) - (13,858,158) 

     

 2020 2020 2020 2020 

Consolidated Group $ $ $ $ 

Financial liabilities due for payment       

Trade and other payables  2,956,727 381,247 - 3,337,974 

Borrowings 6,989,594 715,000 - 7,704,594 

Lease liabilities 1,013,869 2,129,933  3,143,802 

Total contractual outflows 10,960,190 3,226,180 - 14,186,370 

Financial assets – cash flows 

realisable 
      

Cash and cash equivalents 1,370,960 - - 1,370,960 

Trade, term and loan receivables 681,192 - - 681,192 

Total anticipated inflows  2,052,152 
                      
-    

- 2,052,152 

Net (outflow)/ inflow on financial 
instruments 

(8,908,038) (3,226,180) - (12,134,218) 
 

  



ABN 61 605 400 066 | Financial Statements 30 June 2021 

36
13 

NOTES TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021 

 

 

S
m

o
k
e
 A

la
rm

s 
H

o
ld

in
g
s 

L
td

 |
  2

0
2

1
 

Market risk 
      

Interest rate risk 
      

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at 

the end of the reporting year whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash 

flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments. 

Interest rate risk is managed using a mix of fixed and floating rate instruments. At 30 June 

2021, the Group had interest-bearing bank loans of $1,075,951 that has a fixed interest rate 

of 4.40% per annum (2020: $1,515,000) and interest bearing related parties’ borrowings of 

$8,034,414 that has a fixed interest rate of 9% per annum. The Group also had tax debt with 

the ATO of $1,620,496 (2020: $1,255,837) that has carries interest at the General Interest 

Charge rate. The average General Interest Charge rate for the current financial year was 

7.06% (2020: 8.08%). 

The financial instruments that primarily expose the Group to interest rate risk are cash and 

cash equivalents. The Group also manages interest rate risk by ensuring that, whenever 

possible, payables are paid within any pre-agreed credit terms. 

The weighted average interest rates of the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets are as 

follows:                

                                                                                            2021         2020 

Financial assets                                                                                 %                 % 

Cash and cash equivalents (net of bank overdrafts)                          0.1%           0.1% 
 

 Fair Values 

Fair Value Estimation 

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair 

value. 

 
 

25.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 

The consolidated entity had bank guarantees amounting to $186,477 at year end for the 

sub-lease of its main business premises and warehouse in Hendra. 

The consolidated entity is defending an alleged claim of $283,166 from Dialog Pty Ltd for 

services provided between April 2016 and August 2016. As at the date of this report, the 

consolidated entity has a potential liability of $283,166 plus potential legal costs estimated to 

be $50,000 to $250,000. The parties attempted to mediate during the 2019 financial year, 

but as the parties failed, the claim remains in place. The next step is either further negotiation 

and a final settlement between the parties or legal suit at the Supreme Court. No further 

actions have been taken during the current or previous financial year. 

The consolidated entity was also in mediation with Thinxtra Solutions Pty Ltd as at 30 June 

2021. A dispute had arisen between Digital Safety Solutions and Thinxtra Solutions resulting 

in the Development Agreement between the parties being terminated. The company entered 

mediation with Thinxtra Solutions in order to resolve the claim and counterclaim for damages 

following the termination. As at 30 June 2021, the consolidated entity had a potential liability 

of $108,600. Subsequent to the financial year Digital Safety Solutions, and any associated 

contingent liabilities, was sold to Fast Future Pty Ltd. 

The company has no contingent assets. 
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26.  COMPANY DETAILS 

The registered office and principal place of business of the company is: 

39 Navigator Place 

Hendra 
QLD 4011 



 

 

38
13 

DIRECTORS DECLARATION 
 
 

 

 

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited the 

directors of the company declare that: 

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 37, are in accordance with 

the Corporations Act 2001 and: 

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards as described in Note 1 to the financial 

statements and constitutes compliance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and 

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of the 

performance for the year ended on that date of the consolidated group. 

2. In the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be 

able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable. 

3. The directors have been given the declarations required by S295A of the Corporations Act 

2001 from the Chief Executive Officer and the Head of Finance. 

 

The declaration is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors. 

 

 

 

 
 

Chairman    dated this    15th   day of   November  2021 

 

 
Director    
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HALL CHADWICK� (NSW) 

Opinion 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

ABN 61 605 400 066 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE OWNERS OF 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

We have audited the financial report of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited and controlled 
entities (the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 
30 June 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 
and the directors' declaration. 

In our opinion the accompanying financial report of Smoke Alarms Holdings Limited and 

controlled entities is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as at 30 June 2021 and

of its performance for the year then ended; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations

2001.

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those 

standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibility section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and 
the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's 

APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporation Act 2001, which 

has been given to the directors of the company, would be in the same terms if given to the 
directors as at the time of this auditor's report. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 
We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that the Group had 

incurred a loss of $710,539 for the year ended 30 June 2021 and, as of that date, the 

Group's had net current liabilities of $4,859,759. As stated in Note 1, these events or 

conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a material 

uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a 

going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

SYDNEY · PENRITH · MELBOURNE · BRISBANE · PERTH · DARWIN 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

www.hallchadwick.com.au 

SYDNEY 

Level '10 
2 Pork Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 
Au1lralio 

Ph: (612) 9263 2600 
Fx 1612) 9263 2800 

A Member of PnmeGlobal 

An Assoo-ation of lndc-pendenl 
Ac:counimg Firms 

� PrimeGlobal 



HALL CHADWICK� (NSW) 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

ABN 61 605 400 066 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE OWNERS OF 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 

the information in the Group's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021 but does not 

include the financial report and the auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 

report does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is 

to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 

we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that 

gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australia Accounting Standards and the 
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend 
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a 

whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 

also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors. 



HALL CHADWICK� (NSW) 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

ABN 61 605 400 066 

AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE OWNERS OF 

SMOKE ALARMS HOLDINGS LTD 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial 
report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the directors regarding, amongst other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards. 

Responsibilities 

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 
remuneration report in accordance with s 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the remuneration report, based on our audit 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 

/di �&t�d 
HALL CHADWICK (NSW) 
Level 40, 2 Park Street 
Sydney NSW 2000 

� 

DREW TOWNSEND 

Partner 
Dated: 15 November 2021
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